
Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s office, 
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012. 

Agenda of the Belton City Council 
July 13, 2021 – 6:00 p.m. 

520 Main Street, Belton Missouri 
https://www.belton.org/watch 

I. CALL WORK SESSION TO ORDER

II. ITEMS FOR REVIEW AND DISCUSSION

A. Monthly Financial Report

III. ADJOURN WORK SESSION

IV. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

V. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Councilmember Savage

VI. ROLL CALL

VII. PERSONAL APPEARANCES

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA
One motion, non-debatable, to approve the "recommendations" noted. Any member of
the Council may ask for an item to be taken from the consent agenda for discussion and
separate action.

A. Motion approving the minutes of the June 22, 2021, City Council Meeting.

Page 6 

B. Motion authorizing the sale of surplus city inventory/personal property by Mayo
Auction & Realty.

City departments have reviewed these items and it was determined there was no value
to any departments.

Page 11   

C. Motion approving Resolution R2021-57
A resolution authorizing and approving a Public Services Agreement between
the City of Belton, Missouri and Downtown Main Street, Inc. to provide public
services support for the Fall Festival in Belton, Missouri in September 2021.

Page 13 

001

https://www.belton.org/watch


Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s office, 
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012. 

D. Motion approving Resolution R2021-58
A resolution approving a Contract for Services for the Public Works Facility –
Insulation 2 with Washington Roofing & Insulation, Inc. in the not-to-exceed
amount of $48,650.00.

Page 24

E. Motion approving Resolution R2021-59
A resolution appointing James Pryan to the Planning Commission.

Page 51 

F. Motion approving Resolution R2021-60
A resolution reappointing Sally Smith to the Enhanced Enterprise Zone Board.

Page 55 

G. Motion approving Resolution R2021-61
A resolution establishing the 2021 Mayor’s Task Force on Water Infrastructure
and Services and appointing members of the same.

Page 58 

IX. REGULAR AGENDA

A. Motion approving the first reading of Bill No. 2021-36
Readopting Ordinance No. 91-2073, as amended, establishing a procedure to
disclose potential conflict of interest and substantial interest for certain
municipal officials.

Page 61

B. Motion approving the first reading of Bill No. 2021-37
An ordinance amending Section 6-96(d) of the Code of Ordinances, City of
Belton, Missouri as it relates to the conduct of special hearings regarding the
suspension or revocation of business licenses.

Page 66   

002



Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s office, 
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012. 

C. Motion approving the first reading of Bill No. 2021-38
An ordinance approving a final plat for Southview Commerce Center South 4th

Plat; a tract of land in the Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarter of
Section 1, Township 46 North, Range 33 West, in the City of Belton, Cass
County, Missouri and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the plat for
recording with the Cass County Recorder’s Office.

Page 69

D. Motion approving the first reading of Bill No. 2021-39
An ordinance approving a final plat for Southview Commerce Center 5th  Plat,
being a replat of certain lots in Sunset Hills 2nd  Plat, as specified in the plat legal
description, the replat being a tract of land in the Northeast quarter of the
Northwest quarter of Section 1, Township 46 North, Range 33 West, in the City
of Belton, Cass County, Missouri and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to
sign the plat for recording with the Cass County Recorder’s Office.

Page 78

E. Motion approving the first reading of Bill No. 2021-40
An ordinance approving a final plat for Sunset Hills 3rd Plat; being a replat of
certain lots in Sunset Hills 2nd Plat and Sunset Hills Addition, as specified in the
plat legal description, the replat being a tract of land in the Northeast quarter of
the Northwest quarter of Section 1, Township 46 North, Range 33 West, in the
City of Belton, Cass County, Missouri and authorizing the Mayor and City
Clerk to sign the plat for recording with the Cass County Recorder’s Office.

Page 86  

F. Motion approving the first reading of Bill No. 2021-41
An ordinance approving a final plat for Traditions 5th  Plat; a tract of land in the
Southwest quarter of Section 18, Township 46 North, Range 32 West, in the City
of Belton, Cass County, Missouri and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to
sign the plat for recording with the Cass County Recorder’s Office.

Page 94

X. CITY COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS

XI. MAYOR’S COMMUNICATIONS

003



Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s office, 
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012. 
 

XII. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
July/August 2021 City Council Meetings – 6:00 p.m. 
July 27, 2021 
August 10, 2021 
August 24, 2021 

 
XIII. COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY COUNCIL 

 
XIV. ADJOURN MEETING 

004



SECTION VIII 
A

005



Minutes of the Belton City Council 
June 22, 2021 

City Hall Annex 
520 Main Street, Belton, Missouri 

 
Mayor Larkey called the work session to order at 6:00 p.m. Ryan Murray with ETC Institute 
presented the Recycling/City Services Survey Report. Most respondents recycle or are willing to 
recycle; most preferred curbside and are willing to pay for it. Areas the respondents identified for 
the City to focus on were streets, I-49/58 expansion, and code enforcement. Councilmember 
Clark asked if WCA could come to a Council meeting to talk about recycling and contamination. 

 
Being no further business, Mayor Larkey adjourned the work session at 6:35 p.m. and called the 
meeting to order. 

 
Councilmember Clark led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 
Councilmembers present: Mayor Larkey, Tim Savage, Rob Powell, Chet Trutzel, Angela Kraft, 
Dave Clark, Lorrie Peek, Allyson Lawson  
 
Councilmember absent: Perry Gough 
 
Staff present:  Alexa Barton, City Manager; Padraic Corcoran, Attorney; and Andrea 
Cunningham, City Clerk 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Councilmember Clark asked the Council to please remove item D from the Consent Agenda to 
discuss under separate action. Mayor Larkey asked the Council to please remove item E from the 
Consent Agenda to discuss under separate action. 
  
Councilmember Peek moved to approve the consent agenda consisting of a motion: 

• approving the minutes of the June 8, 2021, City Council Meeting. 
• approving Resolution R2021-51: A resolution approving the purchase of four MSA 

G1 self-contained breathing apparatus and associated accessories from Sentinel 
Emergency Solutions in the amount of $37,118.50. 

• approving Resolution R2021-52: A resolution approving the purchase of 13 Lifepak 
automated external defibrillators (AED) and their accessories from Stryker in the 
amount of $24,577.28. 

• approving Resolution R2021-55: A resolution formally accepting the Southview 
Commerce Center first plat new public infrastructure of 1,415 feet of 12” 
waterline*; 1,057 feet of 10” sanitary sewer line; and 3,016 lane feet of street with a 
two-year maintenance bond in the amount of $542,022.60. 

 
*There was a scrivener’s error when this resolution was presented. It is a 12” waterline, not an 8” waterline. The error has been 
corrected on the document and in the minutes.  
 

006



Councilmember Clark seconded. All present voted in favor. Consent agenda approved. 
 
D. Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, read Resolution R2021-53: A resolution approving Task 
Agreement 2021-10 with Wilson and Company to provide professional design services for 
the Hargis Gardens drainage improvements project in the not-to-exceed amount of 
$401,876.00. 
Presented by Councilmember Clark, seconded by Councilmember Trutzel. Greg Rokos, Public 
Works Director, said this is the Hargis Gardens watershed. It is the detention pond and culverts. 
Vote on the resolution was recorded with all present voting in favor. Resolution passed.  
 
E. Ms. Cunningham read Resolution R2021-54: A resolution of the City of Belton, Missouri 
authorizing and approving a contract for services with Kissick Construction Company, 
Inc., the lowest and best bidder, for the combination project for Hargis Lake sanitary 
sewer, storm sewer, and water line relocation in the amount of $5,219,285.00. 
Presented by Councilmember Trutzel, seconded by Councilmember Clark. Councilmember 
Savage requested more information on why the lowest bidder was not chosen. Mr. Rokos said he 
checked the lowest bidder’s references. There were problems reported and they were generally 
not good neighbors. There were many change orders when the City used this lowest bidder last 
time. Vote on the resolution was recorded with all present voting in favor. Resolution passed.  
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
Ms. Cunningham gave the final reading of Bill No. 2021-32: An ordinance amending Chapter 
11 – Health and Sanitation, Article IV – Solid Waste, Section 11-106(b)(9) of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Belton, Missouri to update the hardship exception. 
Presented by Councilmember Clark, seconded by Councilmember Peek. Alexa Barton, City 
Manager, said Belton has many residents on the hardship exception. The contractor has asked for 
this amendment to expedite service. Vote on the final reading was recorded: 
Ayes: 8 Mayor Larkey, Peek, Powell, Savage, Kraft, Clark, Lawson, Trutzel  
Noes: 0   
Absent: 1 Gough 
Bill No. 2021-32 was declared passed and in full force and effect as Ordinance No. 2021-4634, 
subject to Mayoral veto. 
 
Ms. Cunningham gave the final reading of Bill No. 2021-33: An ordinance amending Section 4 
of Ordinance No. 2021-4621, Exhibit C Articles of Agreement and authorizing certain 
actions. 
Presented by Councilmember Clark, seconded by Councilmember Peek. Vote on the final 
reading was recorded: 
Ayes: 8 Peek, Clark, Powell, Savage, Kraft, Trutzel, Lawson, Mayor Larkey 
Noes: 0   
Absent: 1 Gough 
Bill No. 2021-33 was declared passed and in full force and effect as Ordinance No. 2021-4635, 
subject to Mayoral veto. 
 

007



Ms. Cunningham gave the final reading of Bill No. 2021-34: An ordinance accepting the 
continuance of a Mid-America Regional Council (MARC) grant and accepting an 
additional grant for services to individuals at the Belton Senior Center.  
Presented by Councilmember Peek, seconded by Councilmember Clark. Vote on the final 
reading was recorded: 
Ayes: 8 Lawson, Clark, Powell, Savage, Peek, Trutzel, Kraft, Mayor Larkey 
Noes: 0   
Absent: 1 Gough 
Bill No. 2021-34 was declared passed and in full force and effect as Ordinance No. 2021-4636, 
subject to Mayoral veto. 
 
Ms. Cunningham gave the final reading of Bill No. 2021-35: An ordinance of the City of 
Belton, Missouri amending section 8-119 costs, fees, and surcharges of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Belton, Missouri.  
Presented by Councilmember Peek, seconded by Councilmember Clark. Vote on the final 
reading was recorded: 
Ayes: 8 Mayor Larkey, Clark, Lawson, Savage, Peek, Trutzel, Kraft, Powell 
Noes: 0   
Absent: 1 Gough 
Bill No. 2021-35 was declared passed and in full force and effect as Ordinance No. 2021-4637, 
subject to Mayoral veto. 

 
Ms. Cunningham read Resolution R2021-56: A resolution approving a Public Service 
Agreement between Oats, Inc. and the City of Belton, Missouri to provide daily site 
transportation for individuals to and from the Belton Senior Center.  
Presented by Councilmember Clark, seconded by Councilmember Peek. Mayor Larkey excused 
himself for a perceived conflict of interest. Vote on the resolution was recorded with all present 
voting in favor except Mayor Larkey who abstained. Resolution passed. 
 
CITY COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS 
 
Councilmember Lawson provided the Council with a Park report 
 

• The farmer’s market is every Thursday from 4-7 p.m. at Memorial Park 
• June 25 is Theatre in the Park 
• June 26 the outdoor waterpark opens 
• More swim classes are now available 
• August 2 the Belton Senior Center is planning to reopen 

 
Councilmember Powell provided the Council with a Planning Commission report 
 

• Three plats for the Southview Commerce Center building 4 were approved. 
• The final development plan for the Southview Commerce Center building 4 was 

approved 5-1 with Councilmember Powell voting no because the noise level exceeds 
what is allowed. 

 

008



MAYOR’S COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Mayor Larkey said he is working on a task force recommendation for the next meeting. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
July/August 2021 City Council Meetings – 6:00 p.m. 
July 13, 2021 
July 27, 2021 
August 10, 2021 
August 24, 2021 
 
Ms. Barton said we received a citizen complaint about panhandling. Padraic Corcoran, Attorney, 
said this subject has supreme court ruling and cities have a few options. Staff will prepare a 
revised ordinance and bring it to the Council.  
 
Blasting for the 301 Apartments will be tomorrow from 10:00-11:15 a.m. The insurance 
company is still following up on the South Cedar house fire. 
 
Ms. Barton asked for additional information regarding the task force. Mayor Larkey said he will 
have it for the next meeting. Councilmember Clark asked about the recent change in Use Tax. 
Mr. Corcoran said it still requires citizens’ approval. Councilmember Clark asked if the task 
force could look at this avenue for revenue. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Trutzel said he’s getting a lot of questions about the two new apartment 
complexes.  
 
Councilmember Clark congratulated Carolyn Yatsook, Economic Development Director, for 
receiving the MEDC Economic Developer of the Year award.   
 
Ms. Barton congratulated Ms. Cunningham for receiving an additional City Clerk certification.  
 
At 7:08 p.m. Councilmember Trutzel moved to enter Executive Session to discuss matters 
pertaining to Legal Actions, according to Missouri Statute 610.021.1; and to discuss matters 
pertaining to negotiated contracts, according to Missouri Statute 610.021.12, and that the record 
be closed, and the meeting adjourned from there. Councilmember Clark seconded. The following 
vote was recorded: 
Ayes: 8  Powell, Clark, Lawson, Savage, Peek Trutzel, Kraft, Mayor Larkey 
Noes: 0 
Absent: 1 Gough 
 
Being no further business, the meeting was adjourned following the executive session 
 
                         
Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk       Mayor Norman K Larkey, Sr 

009



SECTION VIII 
B

010



7/13/2021 Auction Items 

Senior Center 

• TV 
• TV stand 
• Chair 
• 2 Small chairs 
• Coat rack 

 

011



SECTION VIII 
C

012



R2021-57 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A PUBLIC SERVICES 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AND DOWNTOWN 
MAIN STREET, INC. TO PROVIDE PUBLIC SERVICES SUPPORT FOR THE FALL 
FESTIVAL IN BELTON, MISSOURI IN SEPTEMBER 2021. 

WHEREAS, Downtown Belton Main Street, Inc. has successfully sponsored, organized, 
promoted, and provided administrative support for the Fall Festival in downtown Belton for many 
years; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Belton has determined that the Fall Festival is in the best interest of the 
City by promoting economic development activities, strengthening the central business district, 
and contributing to the preservation of the historic character in the downtown area; and 

WHEREAS,  the City of Belton contributes to this public festival by providing access to special 
event liability insurance, use of city properties and services in the downtown area, and assisting 
Downtown Belton Main Street with security and traffic control.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City Council hereby approves the Public Service Agreement herein attached 
and incorporated as Exhibit A to this resolution to facilitate the Fall Festival 
activities in the historic downtown business district.  

Section 2. That the Mayor is authorized to sign the agreement on behalf of the City of Belton. 

Section 3. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its   
passage and approval. 

 
Duly read and passed this ___ day of ______, 2021. 
         

______________________________ 
 Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 
 
 

013



STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 
COUNTY OF CASS      )  SS. 
CITY OF BELTON        ) 
 
I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was introduced at a meeting of 
the City Council held on the ___ day of _____, 2021, and adopted at a meeting of the City Council 
held the ____ day of ______, 2021 by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBER:  
 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBER: 
  
ABSENT:   COUNCILMEMBER:  
 
             
       _______________________________ 
       Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 

of the City of Belton, Missouri 
 

014



7/2021 

2021 Fall Festival 
PUBLIC SERVICE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF BELTON 
AND 

DOWNTOWN BELTON MAIN STREET, INC 
           
 
This Agreement made and entered into this ____ day of ____, 2021, is by and between Downtown Belton 
Main Street, Inc., a Missouri nonprofit corporation (hereinafter “Main Street”), and the City of Belton, 
Missouri, a Missouri constitutional charter city (hereinafter “City”). 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, Main Street was created to provide education and charitable resources in order to promote 
and strengthen a diverse central business district and preserve historic character and assets in the City; 
and 
  
WHEREAS, as part of its public purpose, Main Street sponsors the Fall Festival (“Fall Festival”) and has 
requested City assistance in securing insurance, providing access to certain City properties on Main Street 
and other services as detailed in Attachment A to this Agreement for the Fall Festival (hereinafter “City 
Assistance”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that the Fall Festival is in the best interest of the City because it 
promotes the general health, safety, and welfare of the City, provides economic development activities 
and promotes a public purpose.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual undertakings and mutual benefits from the services set 
forth herein, the City and Main Street agree as follows: 
 

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Main Street will sponsor, organize, promote, and provide administrative oversight for the Fall 
Festival, as outlined in Attachment A of this Agreement, on September 10 and 11, 2021 for the 
benefit of the citizens of the City of Belton, Missouri. 

 
II. CONTRIBUTION IN SUPPORT OF PUBLIC PURPOSE 

 
In order to facilitate a public purpose, the City agrees to add Downtown Belton Main Street, Inc., 
as an additional insured on the general comprehensive liability insurance as a Special Event. The 
City also agrees to provide access to certain City properties along Main Street for the Fall Festival 
and other services as detailed in Attachment A to this Agreement. 

 
III. TERM AND TIME OF PERFORMANCE 

 
The term of this Agreement shall be effective on September 10 and 11, 2021. 

  

015



7/2021 

IV. ASSIGNMENT/SUBCONTRACTS 
 
Main Street and the City hereby agree that this Agreement shall not be assigned, transferred, 
conveyed, or otherwise disposed of without the prior consent of the other party to the 
Agreement, however, parties agree that Main Street may subcontract for trash and electrical 
services without prior approval of the City. 

 
V. NON-DISCRIMINATION PROVISIONS 

 
Main Street and its subcontractors will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, color, disability, age, religion, sex, or national origin. Main Street 
will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed in good faith. Main Street and 
its subcontractors will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, 
and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.  

 
VI. COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW 

 
All parties shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, codes, and 
regulations.  

 
VII. INTEREST OF LOCAL PUBLIC OFFICE 

 
No member of the City Council of the City, or any officer, employee, or agent of the City who 
exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with review or approval of the work to 
which this Agreement pertains, shall have any personal interest, direct or indirect, in the 
Agreement of the proceeds thereof except as permitted by the law of the State of Missouri. 

 
VIII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 
Main Street is not authorized or empowered to make any commitments or incur any obligation 
on behalf of the City and is merely acting as an independent contractor. 

 
IX. INDEMNIFICATION 

 
Main Street shall indemnify, release, defend, become responsible for, and forever hold harmless 
the City, its officers, agents, employees, elected officials, and attorneys, each in their official and 
individual capacities, subject to the provisions set forth in the Missouri Sovereign Immunity 
Statute, from and against all lawsuits, suits, actions, costs, claims, demands, damages, disability, 
losses, expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees and other defense costs, or liabilities, of 
any character and from any cause whatsoever brought because of bodily injury or death received 
or sustained, or loss or damage received or sustained, by any person, persons, or property arising 
out of or resulting from any act, error, omission, or intentional act of Main Street or its agents, 
employees, or subcontractors, arising out of or in any way connected with the operations 
expressly authorized herein; provided, however, that Main Street need not save harmless the City 
from claims, demands, losses, and expenses arising out of the sole negligence of the City, its 
employees or agents. In addition, the City shall not be liable or responsible in any manner to any 
subcontractor with whom Main Street has contracted for additional services under the terms of 
the Agreement.  

016



7/2021 

X. TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT 
 
The City may terminate this Agreement at any time upon providing Main Street written 
notification of the same.  Either Party shall have the right at its option to terminate this Agreement 
and be free of all obligations hereunder in the event that the other Party is in default or violation 
of the terms, conditions, assurance, or certifications of this Agreement. Non appropriation of 
funds by the City Council shall not be considered a violation or default of this Agreement.  

 
XI. NOTICE 

 
Any notice required by this contract is deemed to be given if it is mailed by United States certified 
mail, postage prepaid, and addressed as hereinafter specified. 
 
Notice to the City shall be addressed to: 
 City Manager 
 City of Belton, Missouri 
 506 Main Street 
 Belton, Missouri 64012 
 
Notice to Main Street shall be addressed to: 
 President 
 Downtown Belton Main Street, Inc. 

519 London Way 
 Belton, Missouri 64012 

 
XII. AMENDMENTS 

 
In order to provide necessary flexibility for the most effective execution of this Agreement, 
whenever both the City and Main Street mutually agree, changes to this Agreement may be 
effected by placing them in written form and incorporating them into this Agreement as an 
amendment. 

 
XIII. SEVERABILITY 

 
It is mutually agreed that in case any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of law 
to be unconstitutional, illegal, or unenforceable, it is the intention of the parties that all the other 
provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  

 
XIV. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to its subject 
matter and any prior agreements, understandings, or other matters, whether oral or written, are 
hereby merged into and made a part hereof, and are of no further force or affect.  

 
XV. FORCE MAJEURE  

 
The Parties shall be excused from performance during the time and to the extent that they are 
prevented from obtaining, delivering, or performing by act of God, adverse weather conditions, 

017



7/2021 

fire, strike, loss or shortage of transportation facilities, lock-out, commandeering of materials, 
products, plants or facilities by the government, compliance with any law, ordinance, regulation, 
ruling, order or other governmental action, or other contingencies the non-occurrence of which 
was a basic assumption on which this agreement was made, when satisfactory evidence is 
presented to the City, provided that it is satisfactorily established that the non-performance is not 
due to the fault or neglect of the Party not performing. 

  

018



7/2021 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date and year first 
above written. 
 
DOWNTOWN BELTON MAIN STREET, INC.   CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI 
        A Municipal Corporation 
 
 
_______________________________    _______________________________  
President       Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST:        ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________    _____________________________ 
Treasurer       City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

019



7/2021 

ATTACHMENT A 
Coordinated Fall Festival activities 

Friday, September 10, 2021 4:00 pm – 10:00 pm 
Saturday, September 11, 2021 9:00 am – 10:00 pm 

 
BY DOWNTOWN BELTON MAIN STREET, INC. 
 

• Solicit and organize vendors 
• Hire musicians 
• Hire subcontractors for portable toilets, trash and electric 
• Secure any electric permits or licenses that may be required for subcontracted electrical work 
• Provide stage, tables, chairs, sound equipment 
• Promote festival through various media: 

Brochures/Flyers  
 Websites 
 Local Cable Channel 

• Provide city water billing department with 8,000 copies of the flier for insertion in the water bills 
• Provide for ADA accommodations in parking and accessibility on streets, ramps and sidewalks 
• Advertise pet guidelines for promotion of safe and healthy environment 
• Coordinate activities with downtown merchants 
• Apply for sign permit and post festival signage around town 
• Post “no parking” signs on Main, Ella, and Walnut on 9/9/2021 in the evening, with approval from 

the Police Department – provide the city with a copy of the sign that will be posted 
• Use traffic channelizers to close the intersections of Main & Herschel/Ella/Walnut/Chestnut/Loop 

Rd. (see map) 
• Inform the Belton School District and school bus company of the street closures  
• Inform landlords, businesses, and residents along Main St and other closed streets about the 

street closures and parking restrictions   
• Provide portable toilets on Loop Rd near the north side of Bays at the Moon – they will be 

delivered on 9/9/2021 and picked up 9/13/2021 
• Clean up streets and sidewalks – before and after 
• Staff the festival 
• Provide post-festival evaluation 
• If a beer garden will be available at the festival, coordinate with City Clerk’s office for necessary 

approvals and permits 
• Coordinate benefits and support from City (City assistance): 

 Administration 
 Insurance for special event coverage on city policy 
 Insert fliers in water bills   
 Access to vacant lot owned by City on Main Street 
 City to post event on website/social media/TV 

 Street Department 
 Streetlights turned on for constant power supply from the streetlight poles 
 Check streetlights on Main, Loop, Walnut and Ella adjacent to Main St to make sure any 

burned out lights are replaced 
Water Department 
 Water provided to vendors through outside faucets at City Hall 

020



7/2021 

Park Department 
 Provide trash barrels – two per block and two on Loop Rd 
 Provide park gators for trash pick up 
 Provide park stage 

 Fire Department 
 Open restroom at Main Street Fire Station 

 Police Department 
 Police officers assigned to festival area 
 Allow DBMS, Inc to post “no parking” signs on Main, Ella, and Walnut on 9/9/2021 in the 

evening  
 Security and traffic control (BEMA) 

 
  
 

021



£ 
::l> 

&Jo.. Intl\ � 
� 

\]\ 

�. 

�//6{ � 

-·- . -
t

(':) 

0 

�·P 
">< 

·«
()

(J.

X: 

- - -- - -- - .

Fall Festival Street Closures    September 10-11, 2021

022

± -7' 

I 

-



SECTION VIII 
D

023



R2021-58       
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT FOR SERVICES FOR THE PUBLIC 
WORKS FACILITY – INSULATION 2 WITH WASHINGTON ROOFING & 
INSULATION, INC. IN THE NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT OF $48,650.00. 
 
WHEREAS, in 2020, the City of Belton purchased the old Seabee’s Lot at 700 Seabee Road and 
is turning it into the new Public Works Facility. The facility has been abandoned for many years 
and is in a state of disrepair. In order to make this facility suitable for the Public Works 
Department, insulation must be purchased and installed. This work is for Building A; and 
 
WHEREAS, bids were solicited through Request for Proposal Number 21-015: Public Works 
Facility-Insulation 2, and the City received three (3) competitive bids in accordance with City of 
Belton Code of Ordinances Chapter 2, Purchasing Procedures on June 25, 2021.  
 
WHEREAS, Washington Roofing & Insulation, Inc. was the lowest and best bid in the not-to-
exceed amount of $48,650.00. 
 

Kansas Spray Foam 
Insulation 

The Hayes Company Washington Roofing & 
Insulation, Inc. 

$55,623.84 $65,415.39 $48,650.00 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. That the Contract for Services for the Public Works Facility – Insulation 2, 
herein attached and incorporated to this Resolution as Exhibit A, with 
Washington Roofing & Insulation, Inc. in the not-to-exceed amount of 
$48,650.00 is hereby approved for purposes described above. 

 

SECTION 2. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and approval. 

 

Duly read and passed this _____ day of __________, 2021. 
  
                           
                Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 
 

ATTEST: 
______________________________ 
Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 

 of the City of Belton, Missouri 

024



STATE OF MISSOURI) 
COUNTY OF CASS     )SS 
CITY OF BELTON       ) 
 
I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was introduced at a meeting of 
the City Council held on the ____ day of ____, 2021, and adopted at a meeting of the City 
Council held the _____ day of ____, 2021 by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
AYES:   COUNCILMEMBER:   
 
NOES:   COUNCILMEMBER:   
 
ABSENT:   COUNCILMEMBER:   
 
                 ________________________ 
                 Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
                 of the City of Belton, Missouri 

025



I:\Agenda Items\2021\071321\RS\5. PW Facility-Insulation 2 Contract-Washington-Res-CA\2. PW Facility - Insulation 2 
Contract Award Council Info Form RS 07.13.2021.docx 
 

                              
                             
 
AGENDA DATE: July 13, 2021                          DIVISION: Public Works 
 
COUNCIL:    Regular Meeting           Work Session           Special Session 
 

  Ordinance   Resolution   Consent Item   Change Order   Motion 
  Agreement   Discussion   FYI/Update   Presentation   Both Readings 

 
ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION:  
In 2020, the City of Belton purchased the old Seabee’s Lot at 700 Seabee Road to serve as the new Public 
Works Facility. The facility, abandoned for many years, is in a state of disrepair. In order to make this 
facility suitable for the Public Works Department, insulation must be purchased and installed. This work 
is for Building A. 
 
Bids were solicited through Request for Proposal Number 21-015: Public Works Facility – Insulation 2, 
and the City received three (3) competitive bids in accordance with City of Belton Code of Ordinances 
Chapter 2, Purchasing Procedures on June 25, 2021.  
 
Washington Roofing & Insulation, Inc. was the lowest and best bid in the not-to-exceed amount of 
$48,650.00. 
 

Kansas Spray Foam 
Insulation 

The Hayes Company Washington Roofing & 
Insulation, Inc. 

$55,623.84 $65,415.39 $48,650.00 
 
Staff recommends approving a Contract for Services for the Public Works Facility – Insulation 2 with 
Washington Roofing & Insulation, Inc. for a not-to-exceed amount of $48,650.00. 
 
IMPACT/ANALYSIS: 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Contractor: Washington Roofing & Insulation, Inc. 
Amount of Request/Contract: $ 48,650.00 
Funding Source: 225-0000-495-7200 ($16,216.66); 660-0000-495-7200 

($16,216.67); 662-0000-495-7200 ($16,216.67) 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE: 
Approve a resolution approving a Contract for Services for the Public Works Facility – Insulation 2 with 
Washington Roofing & Insulation, Inc. in the not-to-exceed amount of $48,650.00. 
  
LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
Resolution 
Exhibit A: Contract for Services for the Public Works Facility – Insulation 2 

CITY OF BELTON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

026



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 1 of 23 

 

 

            EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 

CITY OF BELTON  
CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

 
Public Works Facility - Insulation 2 

 
 AGREEMENT FOR PROVISION OF THE FOLLOWING SERVICES  

Agreement made this__________________, 2021 between Washington Roofing & Insulation, 
Inc., an entity organized and existing under the laws of the State of Kansas, with its principal 
office located at Great Bend, Kansas, hereafter referred to as the Contractor, and The City of 
Belton, Missouri, a Charter City organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri, 
with its principal office located at 506 Main Street, Belton, Missouri, hereafter referred to as the 
City. 
 
This contract and applicable attachments represent the entire understanding and agreement 
between the parties and no oral, implied, alterations, or variations to the contract will be binding 
on the parties, except to the extent that they are in writing and signed by the parties hereto. This 
contract shall be binding upon the heirs, successors, administrators, executors, and assigns of the 
parties hereto. In the event there are any inconsistencies in the provisions of this contract and 
those contained in the proposal, they will be resolved in accordance with the terms of this 
contract. 
 
This contract is effective as of _____________________and coincidental with the Mayor’s 
signature and attestation by the City Clerk and shall remain in effect as described within the 
attachments. 
 

ARTICLE I 
THE WORK 

Contractor agrees to perform all work and provide all deliverables as specified in Request for 
Proposal 21-015 and the General Terms and Conditions in Appendix B commonly referred to as 
Contract Terms and Conditions and according to Contract Agreement set forth here. The selected 
Contractor will complete work based upon individual task agreements. Contractor agrees to 
provide all labor, materials, tools, permits, and/or professional services and perform the 
contracted work in accordance with all specifications, terms, and conditions as set forth within 
the proposal documents including bonding, insurance, prevailing wage requirements, and 
termination clauses as needed or required. The work as specified in Appendix A may commence 
upon the signing of this contract and scheduling and approval of the City. 
 

027



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 2 of 23 

 

 

ARTICLE II 
TIME OF COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION 

 
The work shall be completed by August 2, 2021. Liquidated damages will commence on August 
3, 2021. The date of substantial completion shall be that date when the project or portions of the 
project are officially accepted by the Owner for utilization of the project for its intended purpose. 
The City shall be the sole determiner as to the fulfillment of the work as described.  
 

ARTICLE III 
CONTRACT SUM AND PAYMENT 

The Contractor agrees to perform all work described in the Contract Documents in the amount 
of $48,650.00. 
 
The City agrees to pay the Contractor as outlined in the Contract Documents and subject to 
deductions provided for in Articles IV and VI. 
 

ARTICLE IV 
CONTRACT PAYMENT 

 
The City agrees to pay the Contractor for the completed work as follows:  95% of contract shall 
be paid within thirty (30) days of substantial completion of each section of this proposal – 
inspection and remediation, walk-through and acceptance by the City; a 5% retainage will be held 
until acceptance of the project at which time final payment will be made.  Any monies not paid 
to the Contractor when due will bear interest at the rate of one and one-half percent (1 -1/2 %) 
per month, from the date such payment is due. However, if any portion of the work remains to 
be completed or corrected at the time payment is due, the City may retain sufficient funds to 
cover the City Engineer's estimated value of the work not completed or twenty percent (20%) of 
the contract amount, whichever is greater, exempt from interest, to be paid when such listed 
items are corrected or completed.   
 
The City will be the sole judge as to the sufficiency of the work performed. 
 
The Contractor agrees that the City may withhold any and all payment for damage or destruction, 
blatant or otherwise, incurred to the City’s property caused by poor performance or defective 
equipment or materials or personnel employed or utilized by the Contractor. Additionally, it is 
agreed the Contractor shall also be liable to the City for replacement of materials or services 
occasioned by such breach. 
 
Payment shall be made upon receipt of invoices presented in duplicate as outlined in Appendix 
B. 
 
Third party payment agreements will not be accepted by the City. 

028



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 3 of 23 

 

 

In the event that the Missouri Department of Labor and Industrial Relations has determined that 
a violation of Section 292.675, RSMo, has occurred and that a penalty as described in Section XII 
shall be assessed, the City shall withhold and retain all sums and amounts due and owing when 
making payments to Contractor under this Contract. 

 
ARTICLE V 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

Insurance shall be provided as outlined in Appendix B: General Terms and Conditions to the 
Contract. 

 
ARTICLE VI 

DAMAGES/DELAYS/DEFECTS 
 

The City will not sustain monetary damage if the whole or any part of this contract is delayed 
through the failure of the Contractor and/or his sureties to perform any part or the whole of this 
contract.  Thus, if at any time the Contractor refuses or neglects to supply sufficiently skilled 
workmen or proper materials, or fails in any respect to execute the contract, including extras, 
with the utmost diligence, the City may take steps deemed advisable to promptly secure the 
necessary labor, tools, materials, equipment, services, etc., by contract or otherwise, to complete 
whatever portion of the contracted work which is causing delay or is not being performed in a 
workmanlike manner. 
 
Contractor and/or their sureties will be liable to the City for any cost for labor, tool, materials, 
equipment, services, delays, or claims incurred by the City to finish the work. 
 
Contractor will store, contain, or remove all debris, materials, tools, equipment and vehicles at 
the end of each day so that no hazardous or dangerous situations are created within the work 
location and surrounding area. 
 
Contractor will promptly and within 7 days of receiving notice thereof repair all damage to public 
and private property caused by their agents or employees.  Should damages not be promptly 
repaired within 7 days of receiving notice thereof, the City will authorize the hiring of another 
Contractor to do the repairs.  The original Contractor agrees to promptly pay for the services of 
any such Contractor hired to do such repairs within 10 days of completion of the repairs. 
 
Contractor shall immediately report, to the City, or a duly authorized representative, any accident 
whatsoever arising out of the performance of this contract, especially those resulting in death, 
serious injury or property damage.  Contractor must provide full details and statements from any 
witnesses. 
 
If the Contractor shall fail to complete the work within the contract time, or an extension of time 
granted by the City, the Contractor will pay to the City the amount for liquidated damages as 

029



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 4 of 23 

 

 

specified in the schedule below for each calendar day that the Contractor shall be in default after 
the time stipulated in this contract document. The amount specified in the schedule is agreed 
upon, not as a penalty, but as liquidated damages for the loss to the City of Belton and the public 
of the use of the facility as designated. This amount will be deducted from any money due to the 
Contractor. The Contractor and Contractor’s surety will be liable for all liquidated damages. 
 

SCHEDULE OF LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

Original Contract Amount Charge Per 
Calendar Day 

($) 
From More Than 

($) 
To and Including 

($) 

 0 50,000 150 

50,001 100,000 250 

100,001 500,000 500 

500,001 1,000,000 1,000 

1,000,001 2,000,000 1,500 

2,000,001 5,000,000 2,000 

5,000,001 10,000,000 2,500 

10,000,001 And above 3,000 

 
ARTICLE VII 

RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

The City shall provide all information or services under their control with reasonable promptness 
and designate the Public Works Director, or their designee (in writing) to render decisions on 
behalf of the City and on whose actions and approvals the Contractor may rely. 
 
The Contractor’s responsibilities and obligations under this agreement are accepted subject to 
strikes, outside labor troubles (including strikes or labor troubles affecting vendors or suppliers 
of Contractor), accidents, transportation delays, floods, fires, or other acts of God, and any other 
causes of like or different character beyond the control of Contractor. Impossibility of 
performance by reason of any legislative, executive, or judicial act of any governmental authority 
shall excuse performance of or delay in performance of this agreement. The City and the 
Contractor shall agree upon such any delay or cancellation of performance and execute an 
agreement in writing documenting the excuse of performance or delay in performance of this 
agreement. 
 
Contractor agrees to provide all materials, labor, tools, and equipment necessary to perform and 
complete the contract as specified.  
 
All equipment will be of such type and in such condition so as not to cause any damages to City 
property or the community at large. All equipment used on site will meet the minimum 
requirements of OSHA (Occupational Safety Health Administration) and related federal, state, 
county, and city agencies and regulations, including but not limited to EPA (Environmental 

030



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 5 of 23 

 

 

Protection Agency) and the NESHAPS (National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollution). 
All material will be of a type and quality acceptable to the City, and which will not cause injury to 
property or persons. 
 
Contractor will supervise and direct the work performed and shall be responsible for his 
employees.  Contractor will also supervise and direct the work performed by sub-contractors and 
their employees and be responsible for the work performed by sub-contractors hired by the 
contractor. 
 
Contractor agrees to obtain and maintain, during the term of this contract, the necessary licenses 
and permits required by federal, state, county and municipal governments to perform the 
services as required by this contract.  Contractor shall bear the cost of any permits which he is 
obligated to secure.  Contractor will also ensure any sub-contractors hired will obtain the 
necessary licenses and permits as required. 
 
Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state, county and municipal laws and 
regulations, including, but not limited to, affirmative action, equal employment, fair labor 
standards and all applicable provisions of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, as 
amended.   Contractor agrees to ensure sub-contractors and their employees comply with all 
applicable laws and regulations aforementioned. 
 
Contractor also agrees to be, at all times, in full compliance with any and all applicable federal, 
state and local laws and regulations as they may change from time to time. 
 
Contract is subject to the State of Missouri Prevailing Wage Laws (Cass County Annual Wage 28).  
The contractor shall include the provisions of this clause in all subcontracts for work to be 
performed by subcontractors under this contract so that provisions of this clause are binding 
upon subcontractors. 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

 
With Cause – If Contractor fails to perform his duties as specified in this contract, the City through 
its appointed representative, shall notify the Contractor to correct any default under the terms 
of this contract.  Such notification may be made in writing, and delivered via regular, certified 
facsimile or e-mail  If the Contractor fails to correct any default after notification of such default, 
the City shall have the right to immediately terminate this agreement by giving the Contractor 
ten (10) days written notice, and delivered via regular, certified facsimile or e-mail. 
 
Without Cause – The City may terminate this agreement at any time by providing sixty (60) days 
written notice, by certified mail, to the Contractor at the address listed below. 
 

031



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 6 of 23 

 

 

In the event this agreement is terminated, the City may hold as retainer the amount needed to 
complete the work in accordance with bid specifications. 

 
ARTICLE IX 

ARBITRATION 
 

In case of a dispute, the Contractor and the City shall each appoint a representative, who, 
together, shall select a third-party attorney in good standing and licensed to practice law in 
Missouri to arbitrate the issue. Resolution of the issue will be binding upon both parties.   

 
ARTICLE X 

WARRANTY 
 

Contractor warrants that all workmanship shall be of good quality, in conformance with bid 
specifications and guarantee all materials, equipment furnished, and work performed for a 
period of two (2) years from the date of substantial completion. Contractor shall, within ten (10) 
days of written notice from the City, correct any work found to be defective, incorrect or not in 
accordance with bid specifications. 

 
ARTICLE XI 

REQUIRED SAFETY TRAINING 
 

A. Contractor shall provide a ten (10) hour Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
(OSHA) construction safety program for all employees who will be on-site at the project. 
The construction safety program shall include a course in construction safety and health 
that is approved by OSHA or a similar program approved by the Missouri Department of 
Labor and Industrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program 
as required by Section 292.675, RSMo. 

 
B. All on-site employees of a contractor or subcontractor must have certification of 

successful completion of Required Safety Training within 60 days of project commencing.  
On-site employees must provide documentation that they have successfully completed 
the Required Safety Training within the required time period.  If they cannot do so within 
20 days of a request for such documentation, they must be removed from the project and 
their employers will be subject to penalties as described in the Act. 

 
C. Contractor shall require all of its Subcontractors to comply with the requirements of this 

Section and Section 292.675, RSMo. 
 

 
 
 
 

032



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 7 of 23 

 

 

ARTICLE XII 
NOTICE OF PENALTIES FOR FAILURE TO PROVIDE SAFETY TRAINING 

 
A. Pursuant to Section 292.675, RSMo, Contractor shall forfeit to City as a penalty two 

thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00), plus one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each 
on-site employee employed by Contractor or its Subcontractor, for each calendar day, or 
portion thereof, such on-site employee is employed without the construction safety 
training required in Section XI above.  

 
B. The penalty described in Subsection “A” of this Section shall not begin to accrue until the 

time periods described in Sections XI “B” and “C” above have elapsed. 
 
C. Violations of Section XI above and imposition of the penalty described in this Section shall 

be investigated and determined by the Missouri Department of Labor and Industrial 
Relations.  

 
ARTICLE XIII 

AFFIDAVIT of WORK AUTHORIZATION 
 

Pursuant to 285.530 RSMo, the bidder must affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal     
work authorization program with respect to the employees proposed to work in connection with 
the services requested herein by: 

* submitting the attached AFFIDAVIT OF WORK AUTHORIZATION and  
 

* providing documentation affirming the bidder’s enrollment and participation in a 
federal work authorization program (see below) with respect to the employees 
proposed to work in connection with the services requested herein.  

 
E-Verify is an example of a federal work authorization program.  Acceptable enrollment and 
participation documentation consists of the following two pages of the E-Verify 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU): 1) a valid, completed copy of the first page 
identifying the bidder and 2) a valid copy of the signature page completed and signed by the 
bidder, the Social Security Administration, and the Department of Homeland Security – 
Verification Division.

033



RFP 21-015
Page 8 of 23

Anthony Castillo

034



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 9 of 23 

 

 

APPENDIX A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

 
Public Works Facility – Insulation 2 

 
A mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting will be held on June 10, 2021 at 9:00 a.m., local time, and June 
11, 2021 at 9:00 a.m., local time, at 700 Seabee Road, Belton, MO 64012. Due to the importance 
of all bidders having a clear understanding of the specifications and scope of work requirements, 
bids will only be accepted from those who are represented at one of the Pre-Bid Meetings. 
Attendance at the Pre-Bid Meeting will be evidenced by the representative’s signature on the 
attendance roster.  

 
ANTICIPATED SCOPE OF SERVICES:    

 
The City of Belton’s Public Works Department is seeking proposals to furnish and install closed 
cell spray foam insulation in the Administration Building located at 700 Seabee Road, Belton, 
MO 64012. The metal building has been abandoned for several years and in order to provide a 
vapor and air barrier we are specifically requesting closed cell spray foam for the 
Administration Building. Bidders will be responsible for gathering the dimensions for the 
Administration Building for pricing purposes prior to submitting a bid for RFP 21-015.   

 
  

SPECIFICATIONS THAT APPLY 
   

1. Project Special Specifications 
2. City of Belton Design and Construction Manual  
3. KC Metro APWA Standards and Specifications 

 
METHODS AND PAYMENTS 
 

1. Payments shall be to the Contractor for work completed in accordance with   
applicable sections of Appendix B – General Terms and Conditions. 

 
2. The installation cost of all work included in this contract shall be included in the 

Contractor’s unit prices set forth in the bid. The unit price for each of the several 
items in the proposal shall include its pro rata share of overhead so that the sum 
of the products obtained by multiplying the unit prices so set forth by the amount 
of work as actually constructed shall constitute full payment to the Contractor for 
performance of the work included in the section for the specifications. 

 
 
 

035



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 10 of 23 

 

 

3. Methods and payment for each work item shall be in accordance with the 
following: 

 
a. Bid Item #1 – Administration Walls: Payment for the installation of 3 inches of 

closed cell spray foam on the walls shall be paid for as a lump sum as set forth 
in the Bid Schedule per lump sum. The unit price set forth in the Bid Schedule 
shall include full compensation to the Contractor for all labor, equipment, 
materials, and all other work incidental to the complete installation of this 
item. The Administration building location can be seen in Attachment 3 of this 
document located at 700 Seabee Road, Belton, MO 64012. 
 

b. Bid Item #2 – Administration Roof: Payment for the installation of 5 inches of 
closed cell spray foam on the walls shall be paid for as a lump sum as set forth 
in the Bid Schedule per lump sum. The unit price set forth in the Bid Schedule 
shall include full compensation to the Contractor for all labor, equipment, 
materials, and all other work incidental to the complete installation of this 
item. The Administration building location can be seen in Attachment 3 of this 
document located at 700 Seabee Road, Belton, MO 64012.  

 
ADDITIONAL BIDDING INFORMATION 
 
 Project questions:  All questions regarding the bidding of this project must be submitted 

to Michael Kuhn, Engineer I, City of Belton, by phone at (816) 892-1293 or by email at 
mkuhn@belton.org. All questions must be received (3) days prior to the bid opening.  

 
 Project is tax exempt.

036



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 11 of 23 

 

 

APPENDIX B 
General Terms and Conditions 

 
A. Procedures 

The extent and character of the services to be performed by the Contractor shall be subject 
to the general control and approval of the Public Works Director or their authorized 
representative(s).  The Contractor shall not comply with requests and/or orders issued by an 
unauthorized individual. The Public Works Director will designate their authorized 
representatives in writing.  Both the City of Belton and the Contractor must approve any 
changes to the contract in writing. 

 
B. Contract Award 

The contract will be awarded based on the base bid plus alternates as selected by the City.  
Alternates may increase or decrease the total bid price depending on the price of the 
alternate.  Some alternates are additional items, while others are replacement of other line 
items. 
 

C. Contract Period 
Award of this contract is anticipated prior to the end of July 2021.  

 
D. Insurance 

The Contractor shall procure, maintain, and provide proof of insurance coverages for injuries 
to persons and/or property damage as may arise from or in conjunction with, the work 
performed on behalf of the City of Belton by the Bidder/Contractor, its agents, 
representatives, employees, or subcontractors. The City of Belton shall be named as an 
additional insured under such insurance contracts (except for Worker’s Compensation 
coverage). All coverage for the City shall be written on a primary basis without contribution 
from the City’s coverage. A Certificate of Insurance will be required within ten calendar days 
from the date of receipt of the Notice of Award. All policies shall be issued on an occurrence 
form. 
 
Contractor shall procure and maintain in effect throughout the duration of this Agreement, 

and for a period of two (2) years thereafter, insurance coverage not less than the types and 

amounts specified below. In the event that additional insurance, not specified herein, is 

required during the term of this Agreement, Professional shall supply such insurance, if 

available, at City’s cost. Policies containing a Self-Insured Retention are unacceptable to City. 

a. Commercial General Liability Insurance: with limits of $2,500,000 per occurrence 

and $2,500,000 aggregate, written on an “occurrence” basis. The policy shall be 

written or endorsed to include the following provisions: 
 

i. Severability of Interests Coverage applying to Additional Insureds 

037



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 12 of 23 

 

 

ii. Contractual Liability 

iii. Per Project Aggregate Liability Limit or, where not available, the aggregate 

limit shall be $2,500,000 

iv. No Contractual Liability Limitation Endorsement 

v. Additional Insured Endorsement, ISO form CG20 10, current edition, or its 

equivalent 

 
b. Workers’ Compensation Insurance: as required by statute, including Employers 

Liability with limits of: 

Workers Compensation Statutory 
Employers Liability 
$100,000 accident with limits of: 
$500,000 disease-policy limit 
$100,000 disease-each employee 
 

c. Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance: with a limit of $2,500,000 per 

occurrence, covering owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles. Coverage 

provided shall be written on an “occurrence” basis. The insurance will be written 

on a Commercial Business Auto form, or an acceptable equivalent, and will protect 

against claims arising out of the operation of motor vehicles, as to acts done in 

connection with the Agreement, by Professional. 

d. The policies listed above may not be canceled until after thirty (30) days written 

notice of cancellation to City, ten (10) days in the event of nonpayment of 

premium. The Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance specified 

above shall provide that City and its agencies, officials, officers, and employees, 

while acting within the scope of their authority, will be named as additional 

insureds for the services performed under this Agreement. Professional shall 

provide to City at execution of this Agreement a certificate of insurance showing 

all required endorsements and additional insureds. The certificate shall be on the 

City’s Standard Certificate of Insurance Form furnished in Attachment 2 or its 

equivalent.  

e. All insurance coverage must be written by companies that have an A.M. Best’s 

rating of “B+V” or better and are licensed or approved by the State of Missouri to 

do business in Missouri. 

f. Regardless of any approval by City, it is the responsibility of the Contractor to 
maintain the required insurance coverage in force at all times; its failure to do so 
will not relieve it of any contractual obligation or responsibility. In the event of 
Contractor’s failure to maintain the required insurance in effect, City may order 
Contractor to immediately stop work, and upon ten (10) days’ notice and an 

038



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 13 of 23 

 

 

opportunity to cure, may pursue its remedies for breach of this Agreement as 
provided for herein and by law. 

 
B. Hold Harmless Clause 

The Bidder/Contractor shall, during the term of the contract including any warranty period, 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City of Belton, its officials, employees, agents, 
residents and representatives thereof from all suits, actions, or claims of any kind, including 
attorney’s fees, brought on account of any personal injuries, damages, or violations of rights, 
sustained by any person or property in consequence of any neglect in safeguarding contract 
work or on account of any act or omission by the Contractor or his employees, or from any 
claims or amounts arising from violation of any law, bylaw, ordinance, regulation or decree. 
The vendor agrees that this clause shall include claims involving infringement of patent or 
copyright. 

 
C. Exemption from Taxes 

The City of Belton is exempt from state sales tax and federal 
 excise tax. Tax exemption certificates indicating this tax-exempt status will be furnished on 
request, and therefore, the City shall not be charged taxes for materials or labor. 
 

D. Employment Discrimination by Contractors Prohibited/Wages/ Information 
During the performance of a contract, the Contractor shall agree that it will not discriminate 
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, 
national origin, or disabilities except where religion, sex, or national origin is a bona fide 
occupational qualification reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the Contractor; 
that it will post in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment, 
notices setting forth nondiscrimination practices, and that it will state in all solicitations or 
advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, that it is an equal 
opportunity employer. Notices, advertisements, and solicitations placed in accordance with 
federal law, rule, or regulation shall be deemed sufficient to meet this requirement. 

 
The Contractor will include the provisions of the foregoing paragraphs in every subcontract 
or purchase order so that the provisions will be binding upon each Subcontractor or vendor 
used by the Contractor. 
 
Contractor agrees to pay all employee involved in this contract the required wages as listed 
in the prevailing Wage Order 28 for Cass County, Missouri, USA. 
 
E. Invoicing and Payment 
The Contractor shall submit invoices for services outlined above in the scope of services. 
Certified payroll shall be submitted with each pay request or invoice.  
 
 
 

039



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 14 of 23 

 

 

Invoice shall be based on the following schedule: 
 
At completion of work – 95% of contract amount with 5% held for retainage – the 5% 
retainage will be held until acceptance of the project by the Belton City Council at which time 
final payment will be made. Payment will be based on actual services rendered and actual 
costs. All such invoices will be paid within thirty (30) days by the City of Belton unless any 
items thereon are questioned, in which event payment will be withheld pending verification 
of the amount claimed and the validity of the claim. The Contractor shall provide complete 
cooperation during any such investigation. 
 
Third party payment arrangements will not be accepted by the City. 

 
F. Cancellation 

The City of Belton reserves the right to cancel and terminate this contract in part or in whole 
without penalty upon thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor. Any contract 
cancellation notice shall not relieve the Contractor of the obligation to deliver and/or perform 
on all outstanding orders issued prior to the effective date of cancellation. 
 

G. Contractual Disputes 
The Contractor shall give written notice to the City of Belton of its intent to file a claim for 
money or other relief at the time of the occurrence or the beginning of the work upon which 
the claim is to be based. 

 
The written claim shall be submitted to the City no later than sixty (60) days after final 
payment. If the claim is not disposed of by agreement, the City of Belton shall reduce their 
decision to writing and mail or otherwise forward a copy thereof to the Contractor within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of the claim. 
 
City decision shall be final unless the Contractor appeals within thirty (30) days by submitting 
a written letter of appeal to the Public Works Director or his designee. The Public Works 
Director shall render a decision within sixty (60) days of receipt of the appeal. 
 

H. Severability 
In the event that any provision shall be adjudged or decreed to be invalid, such ruling shall 
not invalidate the entire Agreement but shall pertain only to the provision in question and 
the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid, binding, and in full force and effect. 
 

I. Applicable Laws 
This contract shall be governed in all respects by federal and state laws. All work performed 
shall be in compliance with all applicable City of Belton codes. 
 
 
 

040



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 15 of 23 

 

 

J. Drug/Crime Free Workplace 
The Contractor acknowledges and certifies that it understands that the following acts by the 
Contractor, its employees, and/or agents performing services on City of Belton property are 
prohibited: 
 
1. The unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of alcohol or other 

drugs; and 
 
2. Any impairment or incapacitation from the use of alcohol or other drugs (except the use 

of drugs for legitimate medical purposes); 
 

3. Any crimes committed while on City property 
 

The Contractor further acknowledges and certifies that it understands that a violation of 
these prohibitions constitutes a breach of contract and may result in default action being 
taken by the City of Belton in addition to any criminal penalties that may result from such 
conduct. 
 

K. Inspection 
At the conclusion of each job order, the Contractor shall demonstrate to the Public Works 
Director or his authorized representative(s) of the City that the work is fully complete and in 
compliance with the scope of services. Any deficiencies shall be promptly and permanently 
corrected by the Contractor at the Contractor’s sole expense prior to final acceptance of 
work, and normal warrantees shall be issued at point of final acceptance by the City of Belton. 

 
L. Escalation of Fees 

The pricing of services contained in the contract for the selected Contractor shall remain in 
effect for the duration of the contract. No escalation of fees will be allowed.   

 
M. Safety Training 

Contractors are informed that the project is subject to the requirements of Section 292.675, 
RSMo that requires all Contractors or Subcontractors doing work on the project to provide 
and require its on-site employees to complete a ten (10) hour course in construction safety 
and health approved by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”) or a 
similar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor and Industrial Relations that 
is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program. All on-site employees of a Contractor 
or Subcontractor must have certification of successful completion of Required Safety Training 
within 60 days of project commencing. On-site employees must provide documentation that  
they have successfully completed the Required Safety Training within the required time 
period. If they cannot do so within 20 days of a request for such documentation, they must 
be removed from the project and their employers will be subject to penalties as described in 
the Act. 

 

041



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 16 of 23 

 

 

N. Prevailing Wage Requirement 
The contract resulting from this solicitation is subject to the State of Missouri Prevailing Wage 
Law (Cass County Wage Order 28). The Contractor shall include the provisions of this clause 
in all subcontracts for work to be performed by subcontractors under this contract so that 
provisions of this clause are binding upon subcontractors.  
 
Not less than the prevailing wage included must be paid to all workers performing work under 
the contract (Section 290.250, RSMo). 
 
The Contractor will forfeit a penalty to the contracting body of $100 per day (or portion of a 
day) if a worker is paid less than the prevailing rate for any work done under the contract by 
the Contractor or by any Subcontractor (Section 290.250, RSMo). 

 
O. Permits/Certificates 

The successful Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining all permits and for incurring all 
expenses associated with those permits prior to proceeding with the scope of work and 
services described in this solicitation. Included in these permits will be the Business License 
required of all vendors doing business within the City limits of Belton (unless otherwise 
directed by the City Clerk). This permit can be obtained from the office of the City Clerk, 506 
Main Street, Belton, Missouri 64012. 
 
Certificates must be submitted with the RFP if project utilizes any of the Contractors listed 
herein; Class A and B Contractors, Electricians, Plumbers, and Mechanical Contractors. 
 
Class A and B Contractors, Electricians, Plumbers, and Mechanical Contractors who held a 
2012 Belton Business License must provide proof of at least eight (8) continuing education 
credits (CEU) related to the trade for which the license was issued within the last year. 

 
 
P. Mobilization, Bonds, and Insurance 
 

Mobilization, Bonds, and Insurance will be considered a lump sum item for payment.  The 

total lump sum price for this item shall not exceed 5% of the total base bid price.  

 

 Payment shall be made on the following schedule. 

 

Percentage of Contract Completed Percentage Mobilization Payment 

5% 25% 

10% 50% 

042



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 17 of 23 

 

 

25% 75% 

50% 100% 

 
Q. Bid Bond 

A bid bond or certified check from a surety or bank acceptable to the Public Works Director 
in the amount equal to or greater than 5% of the maximum total bid price must accompany 
each proposal. Prior acceptability of the proposed surety or bank furnishing the bid security 
before the bid date is recommended. An unacceptable bid security may be cause for rejection 
of the proposal. No bidder may withdraw his bid for a period of sixty (60) days after the date 
of opening of bids. 

 

R. Performance Bond 
     The Contractor shall within ten (10) days after the receipt of the notice of award furnish the 

City with a Performance Bond in penal sum equal to the amount of the contract price 
conditioned upon the performance by the Contractor of all undertakings, covenants, terms, 
conditions, and agreements of the contract documents and upon the prompt payment by the 
Contractor to all persons supplying labor and materials in the prosecution of the work 
provided by the contract documents. Such bond shall be executed by the Contractor and a 
corporate bonding company licensed to transact such business in the State in which the work 
is to be performed. The expense of this bond shall be borne by the Contractor. If any time a 
surety on any such bond is declared as bankrupt or loses its right to do business in the state 
in which the work is to be performed, the Contractor shall within ten (10) days after notice 
from the City to do so, substitute an acceptable bond in such form and sum and signed by 
such other surety or sureties as may be satisfactory to the City. The premiums on such bond 
shall be paid by the Contractor. No further payments shall be deemed due nor shall be made 
until the new surety or sureties shall have furnished an acceptable bond to the City. 

 

S. Payment Bond 
The Contractor shall within ten (10) days after the receipt of the notice of award furnish the 
City with a Payment Bond in penal sum equal to the amount of the contract price conditioned 
upon the prompt payment by the Contractor to all persons supplying labor and materials in 
then prosecution of the work provided by the contract documents. Such bond shall be 
executed by the Contractor and a corporate bonding company licensed to transact such 
business in the state in which the work is to be performed. The expense of this bond shall be 
borne by the Contractor. If any time a surety on any such bond is declared as bankrupt or 
loses its right to do business in the state in which the work is to be performed, the Contractor 
shall within ten (10) days after notice from the City to do so, substitute an acceptable bond 
in such form and sum and signed by such other surety or sureties as may be satisfactory to 
the City. The premiums on such bond shall be paid by the Contractor. No further payments 
shall be deemed due nor shall be made until the new surety or sureties shall have furnished 
an acceptable bond to the City. 

 

043



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 18 of 23 

 

 

T. Maintenance Bond 

Prior to acceptance of the project, the Contractor shall furnish the Owner with a Maintenance 
Bond in penal sum equal to an amount of one half (50%) of the contract price that shall remain 
in full force and effect for a period of two (2) years from the date of project acceptance. The 
Maintenance Bond shall guarantee all materials and equipment furnished and work 
performed shall be free of defects due to faulty materials or workmanship and that the 
Contractor shall promptly make such corrections as may be necessary by reason of such 
defects including the repairs of any damage to the parts of the system resulting from such 
defects. The Owner will give notice of observed defects with reasonable promptness. In the 
event that the Contractor should fail to make such repairs, adjustments, or other work that 
may be made necessary by such defects, the Owner may do so with all costs including 
administration fees going against the Maintenance Bond. Such bond shall be executed by the 
Contractor and a corporate bonding company licensed to transact such business in the state 
in which the work is to be performed. The expense of this bond shall be borne by the 
Contractor. If any time a surety on any such bond is declared a bankrupt or loses its right to 
do business in the state in which the work is to be performed, the Contractor shall within ten 
(10) days after notice from the Owner to do so, substitute an acceptable bond in such form 
and sum and signed by such other surety or sureties as may be satisfactory to the Owner. The 
premiums on such bond shall be paid by the Contractor. No further payments shall be 
deemed due nor shall be made until the new surety or sureties shall have furnished an 
acceptable bond to the Owner. 

 

U. Rejection of Bids 
The City reserves the right to reject any and all bids, to waive technical defects in the bid, and 
to select the bid deemed most advantageous to the City.  
 

V. Release of Information 
Pursuant to 610.021 RSMo, all documents within a request for proposal will become open 
record to the public upon a negotiated contract being executed. All documents within a 
request for bid become open record as soon as the bid is opened. Bidders and proposers 
should be aware that all documents within a submittal will become open records. 
 

W. American Products  

Pursuant to RSMo 34.353 for Contracts over $25,000 any manufactured goods or 
commodities used or supplied in the performance of the Contract or subcontract shall be 
manufactured or produced in the United States, unless determined to be exempt as 
provided in the statute. 
1.  Contractor agrees that any manufactured goods or commodities that are used or 

supplied in the performance of this Contract or any subcontract hereto shall be 
manufactured or produced in the United States, unless; 

a. The manufactured good or commodity used or supplied involves an expenditure 
of less than twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000), or  

044



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 19 of 23 

 

 

b. The contractor shall provide evidence sufficient for the City to certify in writing 
that: 

i. The specified products are not manufactured or produced in the United 
States in sufficient quantities to meet the agency’s requirements, or 

ii. The specified products cannot be manufactured or produced in the 
United States within the necessary time in sufficient quantities to meet 
the agency’s requirements. 

2.  The written certification contemplated by Subsection 1(b) of this Section Y shall;  
a. Specify the nature of the contract, 
b. Specify the product being purchased or leased, 
c. Specify the names and addresses of the United States manufacturers and 

producers contacted by the City or the project architect or engineer, 
d. Provide an indication that such manufacturers or producers could not supply 

sufficient quantities or that the price of the products would increase the cost of 
the contract by more than ten (10) percent, and 

e. Such other requirements as may be imposed by Section 34.353 of the revised 
Statutes of Missouri, as amended. 

3. The written certification contemplated by Subsection 1(b) of this Section Y shall be 
maintained by the City for a period of at least three (3) years. 

 
X. Affidavit of Work Authorization and Documentation  

Pursuant to 285.530 RSMo, the contractor must affirm its enrollment and participation in 
a federal work authorization program with respect to the employees proposed to work in 
connection with the services requested herein by  

 * submitting the attached AFFIDAVIT OF WORK AUTHORIZATION and  
 

* providing documentation affirming the bidder’s enrollment and participation in a 
federal work authorization program (see below) with respect to the employees 
proposed to work in connection with the services requested herein.  

 
E-Verify is an example of a federal work authorization program. Acceptable enrollment and 
participation documentation consists of the following two pages of the E-Verify Memorandum 
of Understanding (MOU): 1) a valid, completed copy of the first page identifying the bidder and 
2) a valid copy of the signature page completed and signed by the bidder, the Social Security 
Administration, and the Department of Homeland Security – Verification Division.  
 
PLEASE NOTE: The following affidavit in Attachment 1 must be completed and returned with 
RFP. 
 
 
 
 
 

045



RFP 21-015
Page 20 of 23

046

cberry
Text Box



RFP 21-015
Page 21 of 23

047



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 22 of 23 

 

 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF AGENCY COMPANIES AFFORDING COVERAGES 

 COMPANY 
LETTER A 

 

 COMPANY 

LETTER B  

NAME AND ADDRESS OF INSURED COMPANY 
LETTER C  

 COMPANY 

LETTER D  

 COMPANY 

LETTER 
E  

This is to certify that policies of insurance listed below have been issued to the insured named above and are in force at this time. 

    Limits of Liability in Thousands (000) 

COMPANY 
LETTER 

 
TYPE OF INSURANCE 

 
POLICY NUMBER 

POLICY 
EFFECTIVE DATES 

 EACH 
OCCURRENCE 

 
AGGREGATE 

 General Liability 
 

   
Bodily Injury 

 
$ 

 
$ 

   Comprehensive Form      

   Premises  --Operations   Property Damage $ $ 

   Explosions and Collapse 

           Hazard 

     

   Underground Hazard      

   Products/Completed 

           Operations Hazard 

   
Bodily Injury 

 
 

 

   Contractual Insurance   Property Damage $ $ 

   Broad Form Property 

            Damage 

  Combined   

   Independent Contractors   Applies to Products/Completed $ 

   Personal Injury 

 

  Operations Hazard  
(Personal Injury) 

 Auto Liability 
 

  Bodily Injury 
(Each Person) 

$  

   Comprehensive Form 

 

   
Bodily Injury 

 
$ 

 

   Owned 

 

  (Each Occurrence)   

   Hired 

 

  Property Damage $  

   Non-Owned 

 

  Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage 
Combined 

 
$ 

 

 Excess Liability 
 

   
Bodily Injury and 

  

   Umbrella Form 

 

   
Property Damage 

 
$ 

 
$ 

   Other than Umbrella 

             Form 

   
Combined 

  

 Worker's Compensation 
   

Statutory 
  

 and      

 Employers' Liability    $ (Each Accident) 

 Other 
 

     

 

The City of Belton, Missouri is named as an Additional Insured. 
 

       

Location: 
 

Description of Operations: 

Cancellation:  Should any of the above described policies be cancelled before the expiration date thereof, the issuing company will mail  
                        ______ days written notice to the below named certificate holder. 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF CERTIFICATE HOLDER: 
City of Belton, Missouri 
Public Works Department 
506 Main Street 
Belton, Missouri 64012 

Date Issued:  __________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________ 

Authorized Representative 

 
ATTACHMENT 2 

 Certificate of Insurance 
 

Public Works Department  
506 Main Street   
Belton, Missouri 64012 

048



 

 
RFP 21-015 
Page 23 of 23 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENT 3 

 

049



SECTION VIII 
E

050



R2021-59 
 
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING JAMES PRYAN TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION. 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 2, Article VI, Section 2-137 of the Belton Unified Development Code 
authorizes the appointment of members to the Belton Planning Commission by the Mayor of the 
City subject to the approval of the City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, RJ Warren’s term expires August 1, 2021; and  
 
WHEREAS, James Pryan is hereby appointed so serve as a member of the Planning 
Commission until August 1, 2025. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  That the following named individuals constitute the Belton Planning Commission 
with terms of office as shown: 
 
    NAME        EXPIRATION OF TERM     

Kara Anderson     August 1, 2022 
Kelly Monaghan-Bass    August 1, 2022 
Tim McDonough     August 1, 2023 
Todd Christy      August 1, 2023 
Tom MacPherson     August 1, 2024 
Marsha Vest      August 1, 2024 
James Pryan      August 1, 2025 
Mayor Naman K Larkey, Sr 

    Councilmember Liaison Rob Powell  
 

SECTION 2. This resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and 
approval. 
 
SECTION 3. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are 
hereby repealed. 
  
Duly read and passed this 13th day of July, 2021. 
                           
                Mayor Norman K Larkey, Sr 
 

ATTEST: 
 
                           

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 

051



STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 
COUNTY OF CASS       )SS 
CITY OF BELTON        ) 
 
I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was introduced at a meeting of 
the City Council held on the ____ day of July, 2021, and adopted at a meeting of the City 
Council held the ____ day of July, 2021 by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:    COUNCILMEMBER:    
 
NOES:    COUNCILMEMBER:   
 
ABSENT:    COUNCILMEMBER:    
 
                           

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 

052



Updated 5/26/2021 

 
 

City of Belton, Missouri 
Application for Appointment to City Boards and Commissions 

Please fill out a separate application for each Board/Commission of interest. 
Email the completed form to admin@belton.org or drop it off at City Hall. 

Date   

*Board/Commission of interest ____ 

*Name   *Phone#   ____ 

*Home Address     
  
 

*E-mail     _________ 

Length of residence in Belton  

Why are you interested in serving on this Board/Commission?    ____ 

         ____ 

____ 

____ 

List other service on local boards or commission:  ____ 

____ 

____ 

Other qualifications you have that may be helpful in serving on this particular board: 

           ____ 

____ 

*Required information Signature: ____ 

*Do you reside within the city
limits of Belton?  (circle one)

Yes        No 

506 Main Street Belton, MO 64012 
816.331.4331   www.belton.org 

7/7/2021

James Pryan 402-305-5485

1007 RED CT

Belton, MO

jamespryan704@gmail.com

7 years 

I grew up and graduated from Belton HS. 

I left for the military but came back after retirement and want to make Belton a great place to live. 

TIF Commission

As a Federal worker I have always treated the spending of taxpayers' money with the upmost respect and responsibility.  

053

mailto:admin@belton.org


SECTION VIII 
F

054



R2021-60 
 
A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING SALLY SMITH TO THE ENHANCED 
ENTERPRISE ZONE BOARD.            
 
WHEREAS, the City of Belton established the Enhanced Enterprise Zone Board on June 23, 
2009, by resolution R2009-25; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sally Smith’s term expired June 23, 2021; she is hereby reappointed to serve as a 
member of the Enhanced Enterprise Zone Board until June 23, 2026. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  That the following named individuals constitute the Enhanced Enterprise Zone 
Board with terms of office as shown: 
 

NAME        TERM 
Ron Peek       June 23, 2022  representing the City of Belton 
Ronald Branan     June 23, 2022  representing the City of Belton 
Dave Clark      June 23, 2023  representing the City of Belton 
Tom MacPherson     June 23, 2023  representing the City of Belton 
Dr. Andrew Underwood   June 23, 2024  representing Belton School District 
Dennis Williamson    June 23, 2024  representing Cass County, Missouri 
Sally Smith      June 23, 2026  representing the City of Belton 

 
SECTION 2. This resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and 
approval. 
 
SECTION 3. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are 
hereby repealed. 
  
Duly read and passed this 13th day of July, 2021. 
   
                           
                Mayor Norman K Larkey, Sr 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
                           

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 
 
 

055



STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 
COUNTY OF CASS       )SS 
CITY OF BELTON        ) 
 
I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was introduced at a meeting of 
the City Council held on the ____ day of July, 2021, and adopted at a meeting of the City 
Council held the ____ day of July, 2021 by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:    COUNCILMEMBER:    
 
NOES:    COUNCILMEMBER:   
 
ABSENT:    COUNCILMEMBER:    
 
                           

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 
 

056



SECTION VIII 
G

057



R2021-61 
 
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE 2021 MAYOR’S TASK FORCE ON WATER 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES AND APPOINTING MEMBERS OF THE SAME. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Belton (the “City”) has identified the need to replace, repair, and 
reconstruct certain water lines that are part of the City’s potable water distribution system due to 
the age and condition of the same; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to fund the replacement, repair, and reconstruction of the necessary 
water lines in a manner that balances the public desire to ensure fair and equitable water rates with 
the need to maintain a reliable source of potable drinking water for the City; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to create the 2021 Mayor’s Task Force on Water 
Infrastructure and Services and approve the Mayor’s appointments to the same pursuant to Section 
2.3 of the Charter of the City of Belton, Missouri.   
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  The 2021 Mayor’s Task Force on Water Infrastructure and Services is hereby 

established.  
 
Section 2. The Members of the Task Force are: 
 

• Mayor Norman K Larkey Sr 
• Councilmember David Clark 
• Councilmember Allyson Lawson 
• Councilmember Angela Kraft 
• Tim Williams 
• Cindy Crate 
• Stephanie Davidson 
• Wanda Thompson 

 
Section 3. The 2021 Mayor’s Task Force on Water Infrastructure and Services shall study all 

options available to fund the replacement, repair, and reconstruction of water lines 
in the City and to report their findings, including preferred options for funding, to 
the City Council. 

 
Section 4. City staff is directed to perform all tasks necessary to implement the 2021 Mayor’s 

Task Force on Water Infrastructure and Services. 
 
 
Duly read and passed this 13th day of June, 2021. 
 
 

058



 

              
        Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
              

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 
STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 
COUNTY OF CASS       )SS 
CITY OF BELTON        ) 
 
I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was introduced at a meeting of 
the City Council held on the ____ day of _______, 2021, and adopted at a meeting of the City 
Council held the ____ day of _______, 2021 by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
 
AYES:   COUNCILMEMBER:  
 
NOES:   COUNCILMEMBER: 
 
ABSENT:   COUNCILMEMBER: 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
        of the City of Belton, Missouri 
 

059



SECTION IX 
A

060



BILL NO. 2021-36                 ORDINANCE NO. 
 
AN ORDINANCE READOPTING ORDINANCE NO. 91-2073, AS AMENDED, 
ESTABLISHING A PROCEDURE TO DISCLOSE POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF 
INTEREST AND SUBSTANTIAL INTEREST FOR CERTAIN MUNICIPAL 
OFFICIALS.   
 
WHEREAS, the Missouri Ethics Commission requires that municipalities with an annual 
operating budget in excess of $1 million shall readopt biannually the ordinance establishing 
procedures to disclose potential conflicts of interest and substantial interest for certain municipal 
officials; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Belton adopted Ordinance 91-2073 originally in 1991, establishing the 
above procedure and now readopts every year since then; and 
 
WHEREAS, the procedures set out in Ordinance 91-2073 have been amended from time to time 
and are codified and set out in Chapter 2, Article VI, Section 2-1121 through Section 2-1125 
attached here as Exhibit “A.” 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. That ordinance No. 91-2073, as amended, and as now set forth Chapter 2, Article 

VI, Section 2-1121 through Section 2-1125 attached here as Exhibit A is hereby 
readopted in its entirety according to the directive of the Missouri Ethics 
Commission. 

 
Section 2. The City Clerk shall send a certified copy of this ordinance or amendment to the 

Missouri Ethics Commission within ten days of its adoption. 
 
Section 3. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 

passage and approval and shall remain in effect until amended or repealed by the 
City Council. 

 
Read for the first time:  July 13, 2021 
 
Read for second time and passed:   
 
       ________________________________ 
       Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr 
 
Approved this ____ day of ______, 2021. 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr 

061



ATTEST: 
 

________________________________ 
Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 
STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON    )SS 
COUNTY OF CASS  ) 
 
I,  Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was introduced for first reading at a 
meeting of the City Council held on the ___day of ____, 2021, and thereafter adopted as 
Ordinance No. 2021-______ of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a meeting of the City Council 
held on the ___ day of _____, 2021, after the second reading thereof by the following vote, to-
wit: 
 
AYES:   COUNCILMEMBER: 
 
NOES:   COUNCILMEMBER: 
 
ABSENT:   COUNCILMEMBER:   
 

________________________________ 
Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 

062



PART II - CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 2 - ADMINISTRATION 

ARTICLE VI. ETHICS 
 
 

 
Belton, Missouri, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2021-03-08 11:52:30 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 15) 

 
Page 1 of 2 

ARTICLE VI. ETHICS 

DIVISION 1. GENERALLY 

Secs. 2-1092—2-1120. Reserved. 

DIVISION 2. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

Sec. 2-1121. Declaration of policy. 

(a) The proper operation of municipal government requires:  

(1) That public officials and employees be independent, impartial and responsible to the people;  

(2) That government decisions and policy be made in the proper channels of the governmental structure;  

(3) That public office not be used for personal gain; and  

(4) That the public have confidence in the integrity of its government.  

(b) In recognition of these goals, there is hereby established a procedure for disclosure by certain officials and 
employees of private financial or other interests in matters affecting the city.  

(Code 1976, § 2-191; Ord. No. 91-2073, § 1, 8-27-1991; Ord. No. 93-2215, § 1, 8-24-1993; Ord. No. 94-2261, § 1, 8-
23-1994; Ord. No. 95-2320, § 1, 8-22-1995; Ord. No. 96-2400, § 1, 8-27-1996; Ord. No. 97-2464, § 1, 8-26-1997) 

Sec. 2-1122. Conflicts of interest. 

The mayor or any member of the city council who has a substantial personal or private interest, as defined 
by state law, in any bill shall disclose on the records of the city council the nature of his or her interest and shall 
disqualify himself or herself from voting on any matters relating to this interest.  

(Code 1976, § 2-192; Ord. No. 91-2073, § 2, 8-27-1991; Ord. No. 93-2215, § 1, 8-24-1993; Ord. No. 94-2261, § 1, 8-
23-1994; Ord. No. 95-2320, § 1, 8-22-1995; Ord. No. 96-2400, § 1, 8-27-1996; Ord. No. 97-2464, § 1, 8-26-1997) 

Sec. 2-1123. Disclosure reports. 

Each elected official, the chief administrative officer, the chief purchasing officer, the parks and recreation 
director and the general counsel (if employed full-time) shall disclose the following information by May 1 if any 
such transactions were engaged in during the previous calendar year:  

(1) For such person, and all persons within the first degree of consanguinity or affinity of such person, the 
date and the identities of the parties to each transaction with a total value in excess of $500.00, if any, 
that such person had with the political subdivision, other than compensation received as an employee 
or payment of any tax, fee or penalty due to the political subdivision, and other than transfers for no 
consideration to the political subdivision; and  

(2) The date and the identities of the parties to each transaction known to the person with a total value in 
excess of $500.00, if any, that any business entity in which such person had a substantial interest, had 
with the political subdivision, other than payment of any tax, fee or penalty due to the political 

063



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-03-08 11:52:29 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 15) 

 
Page 2 of 2 

subdivision or transactions involving payment for providing utility service to the political subdivision, 
and other than transfers for no consideration to the political subdivision.  

(3) The chief administrative officer, the chief purchasing officer, and the parks and recreation director also 
shall disclose by May 1 for the previous calendar year the following information:  

a. The name and address of each of the employers of such person from whom income of $1,000.00 
or more was received during the year covered by the statement;  

b. The name and address of each sole proprietorship that such person owned; the name, address 
and the general nature of the business conducted of each general partnership and joint venture 
in which such person was a partner or participant; the name and address of each partner or 
coparticipant for each partnership or joint venture unless such names and addresses are filed by 
the partnership or joint venture with the secretary of state; the name, address and general 
nature of the business conducted of any closely held corporation or limited partnership in which 
the person owned ten percent or more of any class of the outstanding stock or limited 
partnership units; and the name of any publicly traded corporation or limited partnership that is 
listed on a regulated stock exchange or automated quotation system in which the person owned 
two percent or more of any class of outstanding stock, limited partnership units or other equity 
interests;  

c. The name and address of each corporation for which such person served in the capacity of a 
director, officer or receiver.  

(Code 1976, § 2-193; Ord. No. 91-2073, § 3, 8-27-1991; Ord. No. 94-2261, § 1, 8-23-1994; Ord. No. 95-2320, § 1, 8-
22-1995; Ord. No. 96-2400, § 1, 8-27-1996; Ord. No. 97-2464, § 1, 8-26-1997, Ord. No. 2009-3563, § A, 8-25-2009; 
Ord. No. 2011-3746, § A, 8-23-2011) 

Sec. 2-1124. Filing of reports. 

The reports shall be filed with the city clerk and with the secretary of state prior to January 1, 1993, and 
thereafter with the ethics commission. The reports shall be available for public inspection and copying during 
normal business hours.  

(Code 1976, § 2-194; Ord. No. 91-2073, § 4, 8-27-1991; Ord. No. 93-2215, § 1, 8-24-1993; Ord. No. 94-2261, § 1, 8-
23-1994; Ord. No. 95-2320, § 1, 8-22-1995; Ord. No. 96-2400, § 1, 8-27-1996; Ord. No. 97-2464, § 1, 8-26-1997) 

Sec. 2-1125. When filed. 

The financial interest statements shall be filed at the following times, but no person is required to file more 
than one financial interest statement in any calendar year:  

(1) Each person appointed to office and required herein to file a financial disclosure statement shall file 
the statement within 30 days of such appointment or employment;  

(2) Every other person required to file a financial interest statement shall file the statement annually not 
later than May 1 and the statement shall cover the calendar year ending the immediately preceding 
December 31, provided that any member of the city council may supplement the financial interest 
statement to report additional interests acquired after December 31 of the covered year until the date 
of filing of the financial interest statement.  

(Code 1976, § 2-195; Ord. No. 91-2073, § 5, 8-27-1991; Ord. No. 93-2215, § 1, 8-24-1993; Ord. No. 94-2261, § 1, 8-
23-1994; Ord. No. 95-2320, § 1, 8-22-1995; Ord. No. 96-2400, § 1, 8-27-1996; Ord. No. 97-2464, § 1, 8-26-1997) 

064



SECTION IX 
B

065



 
 

 

BILL NO. 2021-37        ORDINANCE NO. 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 6-96(d) OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, 
CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AS IT RELATES TO THE CONDUCT OF SPECIAL 
HEARINGS REGARDING THE SUSPENSION OR REVOCATION OF BUSINESS 
LICENSES.  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Belton, Missouri has previously enacted ordinances 
setting forth the process for the suspension and revocation of business licenses under 
circumstances; and 
 
WHEREAS, under the current regulation the license officer is required to send out the necessary 
notices and conduct a special hearing regarding the suspension and revocation of business 
licenses; and  
 
WHEREAS, to ensure more strict compliance with Chapter 536 of the Revised Statutes of the 
State of Missouri, the City Council desires to amend Section 6-96(d) of the Code of Ordinances, 
City of Belton, Missouri.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. That Section 6-96(d) of the Code of Ordinances, City of Belton, Missouri is  
  hereby amended to read as follows: 
  
 Sec. 6-96. - Suspension, revocation or denial of license 
 

(d) The ten-day compliance period shall be waived if the license officer deems the conduct of the 
licensee to be so detrimental to the public health, safety and general welfare as to constitute a 
nuisance and license shall be immediately suspended or revoked. In these instances, within 21 
days after the suspension or revocation, the City Manager or their designee shall conduct a special 
hearing regarding the suspension or revocation. Written notice of the hearing shall be provided to 
the licensee. Such written notice shall be directed by certified or registered U.S. mail, and regular 
mail, postage paid, and deposited in the mail to the business address of the licensee on its 
application on file in the office of the license officer. 
 

Section 2. This ordinance is effective upon its passage and approval. 
 
Section 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions are hereby 

repealed.  
 
 
READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: July 13, 2021 
 
READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED:   
 
        ______________________________ 
        Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr.  

066



 
 

 

 
Approved this ____day of _____, 2021.        
          
        ______________________________ 
        Mayor Norman K. Larkey Sr.  
 

ATTEST: 
 

______________________________ 
Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk of 
the City of Belton, Missouri 

 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON  )SS 
COUNTY OF CASS  ) 
 
I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was introduced for first reading at a 
meeting of the City Council held on the ____ day of ______, 2021, and thereafter adopted as 
Ordinance No. 2021-____ of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a meeting of the City Council held 
on the ____day of _______________, 2021, after the second reading thereof by the following 
vote, to-wit:  
 
 
AYES:   COUNCILMEMBER:   
 
NOES:   COUNCILMEMBER:   
 
ABSENT:  COUNCILMEMBER:  
 

     
 ________________________ 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk of 
the City of Belton, Missouri 

 
 
 
 
 

 

067



SECTION IX 
C

068



BILL NO. 2021-38 ORDINANCE NO. 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE 
CENTER SOUTH 4th PLAT; A TRACT OF LAND IN THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 46 NORTH, RANGE 
33 WEST, IN THE CITY OF BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI AND 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO SIGN THE PLAT FOR 
RECORDING WITH THE CASS COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission is authorized pursuant to Section 36-35 of the Unified 
Development Code to review and approve, approve conditionally, or disapprove final plats within 
a reasonable time after submission; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission convened a meeting on June 21, 2021, and reviewed and 
recommended approval of the final plat of Southview Commerce Center South 4th Plat to the City 
Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this plat meets the standards for platting as set forth in 
the Unified Development Code and is in the best interest of the City to approve the plat for 
recording. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 Section 1.  That the City Council of the City of Belton hereby concurs with the 

recommendation of the Planning Commission and approves the Final Plat of Southview 
Commerce Center South 4th Plat. 

 
 Section 2.  The Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized to sign the plat, acknowledging 

that the plat meets all requirements of the Unified Development Code. 
 

 Section 3.  The plat shall be recorded at the Cass County Recorder of Deeds, and a copy kept 
on permanent file at the City of Belton. 
 

 Section 4.  The final plat shall be recorded within one year of City Council approval or the 
approval shall be considered null and void. 
 

 Section 5.  That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage 
and approval. 
 
READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: July 13, 2021 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

069



        ______________________________ 
       Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 

 
 

Approved this       day of _________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 

       ______________________________ 
       Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 

       ______________________________ 
       Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
       of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 
 
I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing ordinance was introduced for first 
reading at a meeting of the City Council held on the _____ day of ___________,  2021, and 
thereafter adopted as Ordinance No. 2021- ____ of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a meeting of 
the City Council held on the           day of  , 2021, after the second reading thereof by the 
following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES: COUNCILMEMBER: 
NOES: COUNCILMEMBER: 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBER: 
 

       ______________________________ 
       Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
       of the City of Belton, Missouri 

070



                              
                             
 
AGENDA DATE: July 13, 2021     DIVISION: Planning and Building Department 
 
COUNCIL:      Regular Meeting           Work Session           Special Session 
 

  Ordinance   Resolution   Consent Item   Change Order   Motion 
  Agreement   Discussion   FYI/Update   Presentation   Both Readings 

 
ITEM FOR CONSIDERATION: 
Consideration of the approval of a Final Plat for Southview Commerce Center South 4th Plat, located at 
5901 and 6107 East 155th Street.    
  
PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION:   
Concur with the Planning Commission recommendation of approval.  
 
BACKGROUND:  
The preliminary plat for Southview Commerce Center 4th Plat was approved by the City Council on 
March 30, 2021. The preliminary plat was a part of the rezoning of the property to an FCI Flex 
Commercial/Industrial zoning district of the North Scott Corridor Overlay District + Guidelines. This 
Final Plat was filed in conjunction with the Final Development Plan for Building 4 in the Southview 
Commerce Center. 
 
PROPOSED FINAL PLAT  
The Final Plat is consistent with the preliminary plat. 
 
Lot sizes- The 4th Plat is a 29.94-acre parcel (1,304,189 square feet). The lot size is consistent with other 
Lots in Southview Commerce Center, designed for development of the approved industrial and 
distribution facility approved with the Final Plan. 
 
Streets- The 4th Plat is adjacent to 155th Street, just east of Interstate 49. All required right-of-way was 
previously dedicated.   
 
Easements- The final plat includes appropriate language for utility easements.   
 
Detention- Stormwater management will be provided Tracts A on the north side of the lot. Detention is 
also provided in the adjoining Tract A in the 5th Plat. This detention area is a portion of the overall 
stormwater detention facilities for Southview Commerce Center. The tract will be maintained by the 
property owner as part of the overall management of Southview Commerce Center.   
 
 
 

CITY OF BELTON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

071



General Plat Information-The plat includes all required general information including the legal 
description, lot numbers and dimensions, right-of-way designation, signature certificates, and surveyor 
credentials.  The original Final Plat includes the owners signature and notary and has been submitted to 
the City Clerk. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE:  
The Planning Commission considered the request at their meeting of June 21, 2021, and recommended 
approval of the application for the Final Plat of Southview Commerce Center South 4th Plat, as the plat 
meets all  of Section 36.35 of Unified Development Code. 
 
LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:   

1. Ordinance 
2. Final Plat 
3. Location Map 

 
 

072



1 2 3 4

BELVIDERE HEIGHTS

1
2
3
9
.7

3
'

567

8 9 10
11

12
131415

LOT 16

LOT 3

LOT 1

UNPLATTED

155th Street

V
a
lle

y
 R

o
a
d

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCECENTERSOUTH 3RD PLATTRACT D - DETENTION

GRAND HILL

ADDITION
Plat Bk. 3, Pg. 40

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE CENTERSOUTH 3RD PLATLOT 3
Plat Bk. 24, Pg. 48

Lot 1 Lot 11

Lot 12

POINT OF
BEGINNING

In
te

rs
ta

te
 N

o
. 
4
9
 /
 U

.S
. 
7
1
 H

ig
h
w

a
y

SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

156th Terrace

V
a
lle

y
 R

o
a
d

156th Street

Lot 4

Lot 2

Lot 64

Lot 3

Lot 5

Lot 6

Lot 7

Lot 8

Lot 9

Lot 10

Lot 39

Lot 40

Lot 75 Lot 76

Lot 25
Lot 24

Lot 23

Lot 20

Lot 14Lot 13

Lot 83
Lot 84

Lot 63Lot 62Lot 61

Lot 74

SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

SUNSET HILL

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

SUNSET HILLADDITIONPlat Bk. 2, Pg. 64

N87°57'39"E  83.38'

S78°06'27"E
159.31'

S88°19'55"E  50.19'

N03°37'42"E  41.05'

N88°10'04"E  124.56'

S86°00'29"E  540.79'

S0
2°

28
'3

6"
W

  1
38

5.
85

'

N87°37'42"W  804.32'

N22°06'08"W  121.37'

N02°22'18"E  81.03'

N85°28'47"W  105.29'

N
02

°4
0'

29
"E

  1
17

4.
86

'

TRACT A

SHEET

1 of 3

project no.:

approved by:

checked by:

drawn by:

file name: V_FPT_810200D.DWG

D18-10200

TBW

TMV

TBW

surveyed by: MG

DATE OF SURVEY

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

w
w

w
.o

ls
s
o

n
.c

o
m

T
E

L
 9

1
3

.3
8

1
.1

1
7

0
F

A
X

 8
1

6
.3

8
1

.1
1

7
4

7
3

0
1

 W
. 

1
3

3
rd

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 S

u
it
e

 2
0

0
O

v
e

rl
a

n
d

 P
a

rk
, 

K
a

n
s
a

s
 6

6
2

1
3

FINAL PLAT OF

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE CENTER
SOUTH 4th PLAT

NW 1/4, NW 1/4, SEC. 1, T46N,  R33W
BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI

SURVEYORS NOTES:

O
ls

s
o

n
 -

 L
a

n
d

 S
u

rv
e

y
in

g
 -

 M
O

 3
6

6
, 

K
S

 1
1

4
, 

M
O

 C
e

rt
if
ic

a
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

-0
0

1
5

9
2

04-28-2021 1st Submittal

LEGEND

1

36

06-15-2021 Added Tract A

073



LOT 1

1 2 3 4

SUNSET HILLADDITIONPlat Bk. 2, Pg. 64

BELVIDERE HEIGHTS

1
2
3
9
.7

3
'

567

8 9 10
11

12
131415

LOT 16

UNPLATTED

155th Street

155th Street

V
a
lle

y
 R

o
a
d

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCECENTERSOUTH 3RD PLATTRACT D - DETENTION

GRAND HILL

ADDITION
Plat Bk. 3, Pg. 40

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE CENTERSOUTH 3RD PLATLOT 3
Plat Bk. 24, Pg. 48

Lot 1 Lot 11

Lot 12

In
te

rs
ta

te
 N

o
. 
4
9
 /
 U

.S
. 
7
1
 H

ig
h
w

a
y

SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

156th Terrace

V
a
lle

y
 R

o
a
d

156th Street

Lot 4

Lot 2

Lot 64
Lot 65

Lot 3

Lot 5

Lot 6

Lot 7

Lot 8

Lot 9

Lot 10

Lot 39

Lot 40

Lot 75 Lot 76 Lot 77

Lot 25
Lot 24

Lot 23

Lot 20

Lot 19

Lot 14Lot 13

Lot 82
Lot 83

Lot 84

Lot 15

Lot 63Lot 62Lot 61

Lot 74

157th Street

SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

SUNSET HILLADDITIONPlat Bk. 2, Pg. 64

TRACT A

SHEET

2 of 3

project no.:

approved by:

checked by:

drawn by:

file name: V_FPT_810200D.DWG

D18-10200

TBW

TMV

TBW

surveyed by: MG

DATE OF SURVEY

w
w

w
.o

ls
s
o

n
.c

o
m

T
E

L
 9

1
3

.3
8

1
.1

1
7

0
F

A
X

 8
1

6
.3

8
1

.1
1

7
4

7
3

0
1

 W
. 

1
3

3
rd

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 S

u
it
e

 2
0

0
O

v
e

rl
a

n
d

 P
a

rk
, 

K
a

n
s
a

s
 6

6
2

1
3

FINAL PLAT OF

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE CENTER
SOUTH 4th PLAT

NW 1/4, NW 1/4, SEC. 1, T46N,  R33W
BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI

O
ls

s
o

n
 -

 L
a

n
d

 S
u

rv
e

y
in

g
 -

 M
O

 3
6

6
, 

K
S

 1
1

4
, 

M
O

 C
e

rt
if
ic

a
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

-0
0

1
5

9
2

04-28-2021 1st Submittal

LEGEND

SURVEYORS NOTES:

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

36

06-15-2021 Added Tract A

074



FINAL PLAT OF

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE CENTER
SOUTH 4th PLAT

NW 1/4, NW 1/4, SEC. 1, T46N,  R33W
BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI

DEVELOPER:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF:

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF:

PLAT DEDICATION:

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE CENTER SOUTH 4TH PLAT

EASEMENT DEDICATION:

SHEET

3 of 3

project no.:

approved by:

checked by:

drawn by:

file name: V_FPT_810200D.DWG

D18-10200

TBW

TMV

TBW

surveyed by: MG

DATE OF SURVEY

w
w

w
.o

ls
s
o

n
.c

o
m

T
E

L
 9

1
3

.3
8

1
.1

1
7

0
F

A
X

 8
1

6
.3

8
1

.1
1

7
4

7
3

0
1

 W
. 

1
3

3
rd

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 S

u
it
e

 2
0

0
O

v
e

rl
a

n
d

 P
a

rk
, 

K
a

n
s
a

s
 6

6
2

1
3

O
ls

s
o

n
 -

 L
a

n
d

 S
u

rv
e

y
in

g
 -

 M
O

 3
6

6
, 

K
S

 1
1

4
, 

M
O

 C
e

rt
if
ic

a
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

-0
0

1
5

9
2

04-28-2021 1st Submittal

CITY STANDARD EASEMENT LANGUAGE:

SEWER EASEMENT 

“ ”

WATER MAIN EASEMENT

“ ”

 

 

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

“ ”

TRACT DEDICATION

06-15-2021 Added Tract A

075



076



SECTION IX 
D

077



BILL NO. 2021-39        ORDINANCE NO. 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE 
CENTER 5th  PLAT, BEING A REPLAT OF CERTAIN LOTS IN SUNSET HILLS 2nd 
PLAT, AS SPECIFIED IN THE PLAT LEGAL DESCRIPTION, THE REPLAT BEING 
A TRACT OF LAND IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 46 NORTH, RANGE 33 WEST, IN THE CITY 
OF BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND 
CITY CLERK TO SIGN THE PLAT FOR RECORDING WITH THE CASS COUNTY 
RECORDER’S OFFICE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission is authorized pursuant to Section 36-35 of the Unified 
Development Code to review and approve, approve conditionally, or disapprove final plats within 
a reasonable time after submission; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission convened a meeting on June 21, 2021, and reviewed and 
recommended approval of the final plat of Southview Commerce Center 5th Plat to the City 
Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this plat meets the standards for platting as set forth in 
the Unified Development Code and is in the best interest of the City to approve the plat for 
recording. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1. That the City Council of the City of Belton hereby concurs with the 
recommendation of the Planning Commission and approves the Final Plat of Southview 
Commerce Center 5th Plat. 

  
 Section 2. The Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized to sign the plat, acknowledging 

that the plat meets all requirements of the Unified Development Code. 
 

 Section 3.  The plat shall be recorded at the Cass County Recorder of Deeds, and a copy kept 
on permanent file at the City of Belton. 

 
 Section 4.  The final plat shall be recorded within one year of City Council approval or the 

approval shall be considered null and void. 
 
 Section 5.  That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage 

and approval. 
 
READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: July 13, 2021 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

078



        ______________________________ 
Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 

 
 

Approved this       day of _________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 
______________________________ 
Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 
 
I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing ordinance was introduced for first 
reading at a meeting of the City Council held on the _____ day of ___________,  2021, and 
thereafter adopted as Ordinance No. 2021- ____ of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a meeting of 
the City Council held on the           day of  , 2021, after the second reading thereof by the 
following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES: COUNCILMEMBER: 
NOES: COUNCILMEMBER: 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBER: 
 

______________________________ 
Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

079



                              
                             
 
AGENDA DATE: July 13, 2021     DIVISION: Planning and Building Department 
 
COUNCIL:      Regular Meeting           Work Session           Special Session 
 

  Ordinance   Resolution   Consent Item   Change Order   Motion 
  Agreement   Discussion   FYI/Update   Presentation   Both Readings 

 
ITEM FOR CONSIDERATION: 
Consideration of the approval of a Final Plat for Southview Commerce Center South 5th Plat, located at 
approximately 6107 East 155th Street.    
  
PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION:   
Concur with the Planning Commission recommendation of approval.  
 
BACKGROUND:  
The area of the final plat for Southview Commerce Center 5th Plat was approved by the City Council on 
March 30, 2021. This area was related to the rezoning of property to an FCI Flex Commercial/Industrial 
zoning district of the North Scott Corridor Overlay District + Guidelines and the proposed Southview 
Residential. 
 
This 5th Plat provides for the creation of Tract A, which serves as an open space tract to provide a buffer 
from the single-family homes to the east. The buffer area includes a landscaped detention area, a 10-foot 
berm planted with evergreen trees, shrubs, and sections of 6-foot cedar fencing, and a preservation area 
of existing trees.   
 
PROPOSED FINAL PLAT  
The Final Plat is consistent with the preliminary plat. 
 
Lot sizes- The 5th Plat is a 6.34-acre parcel (276,319 square feet). The plat is designed to provide detention 
and an open space buffer for properties to the east, as was approved with the preliminary plan.  
 
Streets- The 5th Plat is adjacent to 155th Street, just east of Interstate 49. No right-of-way or new streets 
are proposed with the Final Plat.   
 
Easements- The final plat includes appropriate language for utility easements.   
 
Detention-Stormwater management will be provided in Tract A for the proposed single-family subdivision 
and Building 4. This detention area is a portion of the overall stormwater detention facilities for Southview 
Commerce Center. The tract will be maintained by the property owner as part of the overall management 
of Southview Commerce Center.   
 

CITY OF BELTON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

080



General Plat Information-The plat includes all required general information including the legal 
description, lot numbers and dimensions, right-of-way designation, signature certificates, and surveyor 
credentials.  The original Final Plat includes the owners signature and notary and has been submitted to 
the City Clerk. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE:  
The Planning Commission considered the request at their meeting of June 21, 2021, and recommended 
approval of the application for the Final Plat of Southview Commerce Center 5th Plat. The plat meets all 
requirements of Section 36.35 of Unified Development Code. 
 
LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:   

1. Ordinance 
2. Final Plat 
3. Location Map 

 
 

081



313

314

315

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323

324

325

326

327

328

DIKEWOOD

ADDITION

SUNSET HILL
ADDITION

Plat Bk. 2, Pg. 64

BELVIDERE HEIGHTS
Plat Bk. 31, Pg. 13

LOT 3

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE CENTERSOUTH 3RD PLATLOT 3
Plat Bk. 24, Pg. 48

Lot 1

Lot 36

Lot 56

Lot 57

Lot 58

Lot 59

Lot 60

Lot 35

Lot 34

Lot 55

Lot 11 Lot 21

Lot 22

Lot 12

Lot 33

Lot 32

Lot 31

Lot 52

Lot 53

Lot 54

Lot 51

Lot 46

Lot 47

Lot 48

Lot 49

Lot 50

Lot 45

Lot 42

Lot 43

Lot 44

Lot 41

SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

156thTerrace

V
al

le
y 

R
oa

d

156th Street 

Lot 4

Lot 2

Lot 69

Lot 67 Lot 68Lot 64 Lot 65 Lot 66

Lot 3

Lot 5

Lot 6

Lot 7

Lot 8

Lot 10

Lot 39

Lot 40

Lot 38

Lot 37

Lot 30

Lot 79

Lot 78

Lot 80Lot 81

Lot 75
Lot 76

Lot 77

Lot 29Lot 28

Lot 27
Lot 26Lot 25

Lot 24

Lot 23

Lot 20

Lot 19
Lot 18

Lot 16

Lot 14Lot 13

Lot 82Lot 83Lot 84

Lot 17

Lot 15

Lot 63Lot 61Lot 74

Lot 70
Lot 71

Lot 72 Lot 73

157th Street

DIKEWOOD ADDITION

Plat Bk. 2, Pg.639

SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19
SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

SUNSET HILLADDITIONPlat Bk. 2, Pg. 64

SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

SUNSET HILL
2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

SUNSET HILL

ADDITION
Plat Bk. 2, Pg. 64

SUNSET HILL

ADDITION
Plat Bk. 2, Pg. 64

SUNSET HILL

ADDITION
Plat Bk. 2, Pg. 64

SUNSET HILL
ADDITION

Plat Bk. 2, Pg. 64

Lot 62

Lot 631
Lot 632Lot 633Lot 634Lot 635Lot 636Lot 637Lot 638 Lot 640Lot 639 Lot 641Lot 642Lot 643Lot 644Lot 645 Lot 646

Lot 440Lot 441Lot 442Lot 443Lot 444Lot 445Lot 446

BELVIDERE HEIGHTS
Plat Bk. 31, Pg. 12

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE
CENTER 5TH PLAT

TRACT A
SUNSET HILL 3RD PLAT

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCECENTER SOUTH 2ND PLATTRACT B - DETENTION
Plat Bk. 24, Pg.238

155th Street

V
al

le
y 

R
oa

d

S
ta

rti
m

e 
R

oa
d

W
hi

te
 R

oa
d

B
el

la
ire

 A
ve

nu
e

Lot 9

POINT OF BEGINNING
N

2°
28

'3
6"

E
  1

02
2.

26
 (P

) 1
02

2.
09

' (
M

)
S86°28'24"E  190.09'

L=30.62' R=39.00'
Δ=44°59'04" ITB=S02°28'52"W

S2°28'52"W
79.00' S87°28'29"E  197.84'

S2°31'31"W  354.99'

S60°32'47"W  309.46'

S2°28'52"W
313.21'

N85°28'47"W  150.01'

L=118.85' R=50.00'
Δ=136°11'18"

SUNSET HILL

ADDITION
Plat Bk. 2, Pg. 64

SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

SHEET
1 of 2

project no.:
approved by:
checked by:

drawn by:

file name:V_FPT2_810200D.DWG
D18-10200

TBW

TMV

TBW
surveyed by: MG

DATE OF SURVEY

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
91

3.
38

1.
11

70
FA

X
 8

16
.3

81
.1

17
4

73
01

 W
. 1

33
rd

 S
tre

et
, S

ui
te

 2
00

O
ve

rla
nd

 P
ar

k,
 K

an
sa

s 
66

21
3

FINAL PLAT OF
SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE CENTER 5TH PLAT,

 A REPLAT OF LOTS  3 - 4, 19, 25, 39 - 40, 61, 75 - 77
AND ALL OF LOTS 5 - 10, 20, 23 - 24 AND 74,

 SUNSET HILL 2ND PLAT, A SUBDIVISION IN THE
NE 1/4, NW 1/4, SECTION 1, T46N,  R33W

BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI

SURVEYORS NOTES:

O
ls

so
n 

- L
an

d 
S

ur
ve

yi
ng

 - 
M

O
 3

66
, K

S
 1

14
, M

O
 C

er
tif

ic
at

e 
of

 A
ut

ho
rit

y-
00

15
92

05-05-2021 1st Submittal

LEGEND

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE
CENTER 4TH PLAT

LOT 1

06-14-2021 Revise Adj. Plat Name

082



FINAL PLAT OF
SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE CENTER 5TH PLAT,

 A REPLAT OF LOTS 3 - 10, 19 - 20, 23 - 25, 39 - 40, 61,
74 - 77, SUNSET HILL 2ND PLAT, A SUBDIVISION IN THE

NE 1/4, NW 1/4, SECTION 1, T46N,  R33W
BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI

DEVELOPER:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF:

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF:

PLAT DEDICATION:

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE CENTER 5TH PLAT

EASEMENT DEDICATION:

SHEET
2 of 2

project no.:
approved by:
checked by:

drawn by:

file name:V_FPT2_810200D.DWG
D18-10200

TBW

TMV

TBW
surveyed by: MG

DATE OF SURVEY

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
91

3.
38

1.
11

70
FA

X
 8

16
.3

81
.1

17
4

73
01

 W
. 1

33
rd

 S
tre

et
, S

ui
te

 2
00

O
ve

rla
nd

 P
ar

k,
 K

an
sa

s 
66

21
3

O
ls

so
n 

- L
an

d 
S

ur
ve

yi
ng

 - 
M

O
 3

66
, K

S
 1

14
, M

O
 C

er
tif

ic
at

e 
of

 A
ut

ho
rit

y-
00

15
92

05-05-2021 1st Submittal

CITY STANDARD EASEMENT LANGUAGE:

SEWER EASEMENT 

“ ”

WATER MAIN EASEMENT

“ ”

 

 

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

“ ”

06-14-2021 Revisions

083



084



SECTION IX 
E

085



BILL NO. 2021-40                 ORDINANCE NO. 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR SUNSET HILLS 3rd  PLAT; BEING A 
REPLAT OF CERTAIN LOTS IN SUNSET HILLS 2nd PLAT AND SUNSET HILLS 
ADDITION, AS SPECIFIED IN THE PLAT LEGAL DESCRIPTION, THE REPLAT BEING 
A TRACT OF LAND IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 46 NORTH, RANGE 33 WEST, IN THE CITY OF BELTON, 
CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO 
SIGN THE PLAT FOR RECORDING WITH THE CASS COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission is authorized pursuant to Section 36-35 of the Unified 
Development Code to review and approve, approve conditionally, or disapprove final plats within a 
reasonable time after submission; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission convened a meeting on June 21, 2021, and reviewed and 
recommended approval of the final plat of Sunset Hills 3rd Plat to the City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this plat meets the standards for platting as set forth in 
the Unified Development Code and is in the best interest of the City to approve the plat for 
recording. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1.  That the City Council of the City of Belton hereby concurs with the 
recommendation of the Planning Commission and approves the Final Plat of Sunset Hills 3rd Plat. 
 

 Section 2.  The Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized to sign the plat, acknowledging 
that the plat meets all requirements of the Unified Development Code. 
 

 Section 3.  The plat shall be recorded at the Cass County Recorder of Deeds, and a copy kept 
on permanent file at the City of Belton. 
 

 Section 4.  The final plat shall be recorded within one year of City Council approval or the 
approval shall be considered null and void. 
 

 Section 5.  That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage 
and approval. 
 
READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: July 13, 2021 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

 

086



        ______________________________ 
Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 

 
 

Approved this       day of _________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 
______________________________ 
Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 
 
I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing ordinance was introduced for first 
reading at a meeting of the City Council held on the _____ day of ___________,  2021, and 
thereafter adopted as Ordinance No. 2021- ____ of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a meeting of 
the City Council held on the           day of  , 2021, after the second reading thereof by the 
following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES: COUNCILMEMBER: 
NOES: COUNCILMEMBER: 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBER: 
 

______________________________ 
Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

087



                              
                             
 
AGENDA DATE: July 13, 2021     DIVISION: Planning and Building Department 
 
COUNCIL:      Regular Meeting           Work Session           Special Session 
 

  Ordinance   Resolution   Consent Item   Change Order   Motion 
  Agreement   Discussion   FYI/Update   Presentation   Both Readings 

 
ITEM FOR CONSIDERATION: 
Approval of a Final Plat for Sunset Hills 3rd Plat, located on the south side of 155th Street, at Valley Road 
and Startimes Drive, extended. 
  
PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION:   
Concur with the Planning Commission recommendation of approval.  
 
BACKGROUND:  
This Final Plat for Sunset Hills 3rd Plat was submitted in conjunction with the Final Development Plan 
for Building 4, Southview Commerce Center. The plat provides for the creation of 26 new residential 
lots, to be developed east of Building 4. The purpose of the subdivision is to provide new residential lots 
to serve as a buffer for the existing single-family homes on White Drive and Startimes Drive from 
Building 4. Please note that this area was referred to as Southview Residential at the time of the 
preliminary plan. 
 
This property was final platted as Sunset Hills in 2005. The subdivision provided for the extension of 
Valley Road and partial extension of Startimes Road from the existing stub street location, south to 
157th Street and east to White Drive. The subdivision included 53 lots. No building permits were ever 
issued for the construction of new homes in Sunset Hills. The final plat for Sunset Hills is attached for 
further information. 
 
At this time, NorthPoint is proposing to replat or vacate the existing plat of Sunset Hills, for the purpose 
of platting 26 new single-family lots.  
 
PROPOSED FINAL PLAT: 
The Final Plat is consistent with the preliminary plat as approved by the City Council. 
 
Plat details- The Final Plat provides 26 lots, generally along Startimes Drive as extended from its 
existing stub location south of 155th Street. There are also lots platted along east/west 157th Street. The 
plat includes the dedication of these street extensions, as well as a cul-de-sac at the end of Valley Road.   
An open space Tract in the adjoining 5th Plat provides for tree preservation, a landscape berm, a 
continuation of the existing trail network and area-wide detention for the single-family subdivision and 
Building 4. 
 

CITY OF BELTON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

088



Zoning- The property is a zoned R-1 Single-Family Residential District.   
 
Single-Family lots- The minimum lot size in the R-1 District is 70’ x 120’, with a minimum lot area of 
8400 square feet. There are 26 single-family lots, with a lot sizes ranging from a 75’ and 80’ width and 
184’ depth, providing lot area of approximately 14,000 to 19,000 square feet.  
 
The proposed lots exceed the minimum lot size of the R-1 District. 
 
The lots and blocks meet the minimum design standards of the Unified Development Code. 
 
The Unified Development Code requires a 30-foot front setback on all lots. The setback is designated on 
all the lots. 
 
Streets/sidewalks- All streets will be public streets, with right-of-way width to match existing dedicated 
streets. Sidewalks are required on both sides of the street.  
 
Utilities- The Final Plat makes adequate provisions for public utilities and drainage. 
 
Easements- The Final Plat includes all necessary easements for utilities and drainage.   
 
Detention- Stormwater management will be provided by the detention basin located on Tract A in the 
adjoining 5th Plat. 
 
General Plat Information-The plat includes all required general information including the legal 
description, lot numbers and dimensions, right-of-way designation, signature certificates, and surveyor 
credentials.  The original Final Plat includes the owners signature and notary and has been submitted to 
the City Clerk. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE:  
The Planning Commission considered the request at their meeting of June 21, 2021, and recommended 
approval of the application for Sunset Hills 3rd Plat. The plat meets all requirements of Section 36.35 of 
Unified Development Code. 
 
LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:   

1. Ordinance 
2. Final Plat 
3. Location Map 

 
 

089



313

314

315

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323

324

325

326

327

328

DIKEWOOD

ADDITION

SUNSET HILL
ADDITION

Plat Bk. 2, Pg. 64

BELVIDERE HEIGHTS
Plat Bk. 31, Pg. 13

LOT 3

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE CENTERSOUTH 3RD PLATLOT 3
Plat Bk. 24, Pg. 48

Lot 1

Lot 36

Lot 56

Lot 57

Lot 58

Lot 59

Lot 60

Lot 35

Lot 34

Lot 55

Lot 11 Lot 21

Lot 22
Lot 12

Lot 33

Lot 32

Lot 31

Lot 52

Lot 53

Lot 54

Lot 51

Lot 46

Lot 47

Lot 48

Lot 49

Lot 50

Lot 45

Lot 42

Lot 43

Lot 44

Lot 41

SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

156th Terrace

V
a
lle

y
 R

o
a
d

156th Street 

 4

Lot 2

Lot 69

 67  68
 64

 65  66

 3

 5

 6

 7

 8

 10

 39

 40

 38

 37

 30

 79

 78

 80
 81

 75

 76
 77

 29

 28

 27 26 25

 24

 23

 20

 19

 18

 16

 14
 13

 82
 84

 17

 15

 63 61 74

Lot 70
Lot 71 Lot 72

Lot 73

157th Street

DIKEWOOD ADDITION

Plat Bk. 2, Pg.639

SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

SUNSET HILLADDITIONPlat Bk. 2, Pg. 64

SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

SUNSET HILL
2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

SUNSET HILL

ADDITION
Plat Bk. 2, Pg. 64

SUNSET HILL

ADDITION
Plat Bk. 2, Pg. 64

SUNSET HILL

ADDITION
Plat Bk. 2, Pg. 64

SUNSET HILL
ADDITION

Plat Bk. 2, Pg. 64

S86°00'29"E  540.79'

S2
°2

8'
36

"W
  1

38
5.

85
'

 62

Lot 631
Lot 632Lot 633Lot 634Lot 635Lot 636Lot 637Lot 638 Lot 640Lot 639 Lot 641Lot 642Lot 643Lot 644Lot 645 Lot 646

Lot 440Lot 441Lot 442Lot 443Lot 444Lot 445Lot 446

BELVIDERE HEIGHTS
Plat Bk. 31, Pg. 12

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCECENTER SOUTH 2ND PLATTRACT B - DETENTION
Plat Bk. 24, Pg.238

155th Street

V
a
lle

y
 R

o
a
d

S
ta

rt
im

e
 R

o
a
d

W
h
it
e
 R

o
a
d

B
e
lla

ir
e
 A

v
e
n
u
e

 9

POINT OF BEGINNING

SUNSET HILL

ADDITION
Plat Bk. 2, Pg. 64

SUNSET HILL

2ND PLAT

Plat Bk. 19, Pg. 19

S86°28'24"E  422.91'

S
2°

31
'2

7"
W

  4
00

.0
7'

S86°29'28"E  237.21'

S
2°

32
'1

1"
W

  3
95

.2
2'

N86°26'45"W  20.63'

S2
°2

8'
44

"W
  2

41
.2

4'

N85°28'47"W  679.20'

N2°28'52"E  313.21'

N60°32'47"E  309.46'

N2°31'31"E  354.99'

N87°28'29"W  197.84'

N2°28'52"E
79.00'

L=118.85'
R=50.00'

Δ=136°11'18"
ITB=N88°43'22"W

L=30.62' R=39.00'
Δ=44°59'04"

Tract A

Tract A

S
ta

rt
im

e
 R

o
a
d

E. 157th Street

 83

Lot 15

Lot 14

Tract A

Tract A Lot 13
Lot 12

Lot 11

Lot 23

Lot 24

Lot 25

Lot 26

Lot 9

Lot 10

Lot 8

Lot 7

Lot 6

Lot 5

Tract A

Lot 4

Lot 3
Lot 2

Lot 1

Lot 16 Lot 17 Lot 18
Lot 19

Lot 20 Lot 21 Lot 22
Tract A

SHEET

1 of 2

project no.:

approved by:

checked by:

drawn by:

file name:V_FPT3_810200D.DWG

D18-10200

TBW

TMV

TBW

surveyed by: MG

DATE OF SURVEY

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

w
w

w
.o

ls
s
o

n
.c

o
m

T
E

L
 9

1
3

.3
8

1
.1

1
7

0
F

A
X

 8
1

6
.3

8
1

.1
1

7
4

7
3

0
1

 W
. 

1
3

3
rd

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 S

u
it
e

 2
0

0
O

v
e

rl
a

n
d

 P
a

rk
, 

K
a

n
s
a

s
 6

6
2

1
3

FINAL PLAT OF

SUNSET HILLS 3RD PLAT
A REPLAT OF LOTS 13 - 19, 25 - 30, 37 - 40, 61 - 68 and 75 - 84,

SUNSET HILL 2ND PLAT, AND ALL THAT PART OF LOTS 65 AND 66,
SUNSET HILL ADDITION, BOTH SUBDIVISIONS IN THE

NE 1/4, NW 1/4, SECTION 1, T46N,  R33W
BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI

SURVEYORS NOTES:

O
ls

s
o

n
 -

 L
a

n
d

 S
u

rv
e

y
in

g
 -

 M
O

 3
6

6
, 

K
S

 1
1

4
, 

M
O

 C
e

rt
if
ic

a
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

-0
0

1
5

9
2

05-05-2021 1st Submittal

LEGEND

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE
CENTER SOUTH 4TH PLAT

LOT 1

SOUTHVIEW
COMMERCE CENTER

SOUTH 5TH PLAT
TRACT A

06-07-2021 Revised Lot Layout

090



FINAL PLAT OF

SUNSET HILLS 3RD PLAT
A REPLAT OF LOTS 13 - 19, 25 - 30, 37 - 40, 61 - 68 and 75 - 84,

SUNSET HILL 2ND PLAT, AND ALL THAT PART OF LOTS 65 AND
66, SUNSET HILL ADDITION, BOTH SUBDIVISIONS IN THE

NE 1/4, NW 1/4, SECTION 1, T46N,  R33W
BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI

DEVELOPER:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF:

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF:

PLAT DEDICATION:

SUNSET HILLS 3RD PLAT

EASEMENT DEDICATION:

SHEET

2 of 2

project no.:

approved by:

checked by:

drawn by:

file name:V_FPT3_810200D.DWG

D18-10200

TBW

TMV

TBW

surveyed by: MG

DATE OF SURVEY

w
w

w
.o

ls
s
o

n
.c

o
m

T
E

L
 9

1
3

.3
8

1
.1

1
7

0
F

A
X

 8
1

6
.3

8
1

.1
1

7
4

7
3

0
1

 W
. 

1
3

3
rd

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 S

u
it
e

 2
0

0
O

v
e

rl
a

n
d

 P
a

rk
, 

K
a

n
s
a

s
 6

6
2

1
3

O
ls

s
o

n
 -

 L
a

n
d

 S
u

rv
e

y
in

g
 -

 M
O

 3
6

6
, 

K
S

 1
1

4
, 

M
O

 C
e

rt
if
ic

a
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

-0
0

1
5

9
2

05-05-2021 1st Submittal

CITY STANDARD EASEMENT LANGUAGE:

SEWER EASEMENT 

“ ”

WATER MAIN EASEMENT

“ ”

 

 

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

“ ”

06-07-2021 Revised Lot Layout

091



092



SECTION IX 
F

093



BILL NO. 2021-41        ORDINANCE NO. 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR TRADITIONS 5th PLAT; A 
TRACT OF LAND IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 46 
NORTH, RANGE 32 WEST, IN THE CITY OF BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI 
AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO SIGN THE PLAT FOR 
RECORDING WITH THE CASS COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission is authorized pursuant to Section 36-35 of the Unified 
Development Code to review and approve, approve conditionally, or disapprove final plats within 
a reasonable time after submission; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission convened a meeting on April 19, 2021, and reviewed and 
recommended approval of the final plat of Traditions 5th Plat to the City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this plat meets the standards for platting as set forth in 
the Unified Development Code and is in the best interest of the City to approve the plat for 
recording. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1. That the City Council of the City of Belton hereby concurs with the recommendation of 
the Planning Commission and approves the Final Plat of Traditions 5th Plat. 
 

 Section 2. The Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized to sign the plat, acknowledging that 
the plat meets all requirements of the Unified Development Code. 
 

 Section 3. The plat shall be recorded at the Cass County Recorder of Deeds, and a copy kept on 
permanent file at the City of Belton. 
 

 Section 4. The final plat shall be recorded within one year of City Council approval or the approval 
shall be considered null and void. 
 

 Section 5. That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and 
approval. 
 
READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: July 13, 2021 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

 

 

094



         ______________________________ 
        Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 

 
 

Approved this       day of _________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 

        ______________________________ 
        Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 

 
 
         ATTEST: 
 
 

        ______________________________ 
        Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
        of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 
 
I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing ordinance was introduced for first 
reading at a meeting of the City Council held on the _____ day of ___________,  2021, and 
thereafter adopted as Ordinance No. 2021- ____ of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a meeting of 
the City Council held on the           day of ____, 2021, after the second reading thereof by the 
following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES: COUNCILMEMBER: 
NOES: COUNCILMEMBER: 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBER: 
 

        ______________________________ 
        Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
        of the City of Belton, Missouri 

095



                              
                             
 
AGENDA DATE: July 13, 2021     DIVISION: Planning and Building Department 
 
COUNCIL:      Regular Meeting           Work Session           Special Session 
 

  Ordinance   Resolution   Consent Item   Change Order   Motion 
  Agreement   Discussion   FYI/Update   Presentation   Both Readings 

 
ITEM FOR CONSIDERATION: 
Approval of a Final Plat of Traditions 5th Plat, located north of Cambridge Road, east of Mullen Road, in 
the Traditions Planned Unit Development.    
  
PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION:   
Concur with the Planning Commission recommendation of approval.  
 
BACKGROUND:  
The Traditions is a R-3 mixed-use Planned Unit Development initially approved in 2006.  A revised 
preliminary plat for Traditions was approved by the City Council in May of 2018.  The original plan and 
the 2018 revision provided for new single-family homes in the area of the proposed 5th Plat.   
 
This application will provide 19 new lots for future construction, adding to the new home inventory of 
the subdivision. 
 
PROPOSED FINAL PLAT: 
The Final Plat is consistent with the revised preliminary plat as approved by the City Council. 
 
Lots and Blocks-The plat provides for 19 lots and four tracts, to allow the construction of additional 
single-family homes in Traditions. The lots range in size from 8,200 square feet to 12,000 square feet. 
All the lots meet the minimum lot sizes specified in the revised Planned Unit Development from 2018.    
 
Streets- The plat includes the dedication of right-of-way for Shane Lane, the main north/south street 
connecting to Cambridge Road, east/west Maci Lane, and a new cul-de-sac Shane Court.  At the 
intersection with Cambridge Road, Shane Lane includes a divided median to provide a landscape tract at 
the subdivision entrance, as required with the original PUD plan. 
 
These new streets will provide access to the lots, and the proposed streets meet the local residential 
right-of-way requirements approved with the PUD, and the Unified Development Code. The Plat also 
includes 25 feet of additional right-of-way dedication on the north side of Cambridge Road. 
 
Easements-The final plat includes appropriate language for public utility and drainage easements.  
 

CITY OF BELTON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

096



Tracts/Open Space- The plat includes the dedication of Tracts 5A, 5B, 5C, and 5D for open space in the 
subdivision.  Tract 5C will be a landscape area that includes a section multi-use trail that is a 
requirement of the PUD. 
 
General Plat Information-The plat includes all required general information including the legal 
description, lot numbers and dimensions, right-of-way designation, signature certificates, and surveyor 
credentials.  The original Final Plat includes the owners signature and notary and has been submitted to 
the City Clerk. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE:  
The Planning Commission considered the request at their meeting of April 19, 2021 and recommended 
approval of the application for the Final Plat of Traditions 5th Plat, as the plat meets all final plat 
requirements of Section 36.35 of Unified Development Code. 
 
LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:   

1. Ordinance 
2. Final Plat 
3. Location Map 

 
 

097



2

5

'

 

B

L

C

L

 

1

0

0

'

 

M

I

S

S

O

U

R

I

 

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

S

E

R

V

I

C

E

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

,

 

B

K

.

 

5

0

6

,

 

P

G

.

 

8

4

1

0

0

'

LOT 3

R

E

P

L

A

T

 

O

F

 

W

H

O

R

T

O

N

 

F

A

R

M

S

U

N

P

L

A

T

T

E

D

U

N

P

L

A

T

T

E

D

U

N

P

L

A

T

T

E

D

U
N

P
L
A

T
T

E
D

TRADITIONS - 4TH PLAT

239

238

237

271

TRACT-V

TRACT-W

T

R

A

D

I

T

I

O

N

S

 

-

 

4

T

H

 

P

L

A

T

S
8
6
°1

5
'3

2
"E

  1
3
2
.8

4
'

N87°26'33"E

87.69'

N

6

0

°

4

7

'

1

5

"

E

 

 

3

0

5

.

9

6

'

S

3

1

°

4

1

'

1

4

"

E

 

 

9

2

5

.

8

2

'

N
8
6
°3

0
'0

7
"W

  7
1
0
.7

9
'

N
0
3
°
3
0
'
2
9
"
E

 
 
2
7
4
.
8
2
'

N
8
6
°1

2
'5

7
"W

  1
7
3
.4

9
'

N

1

6

°

4

4

'
2

5

"

W

 
 
1

5

5

.
9

8

'

R=375.00'

L=23.90'

Δ=3°39'08"

ITB=S76°54'43"W

N

1

3

°

0

5

'
1

7

"
W

 
 
1

7

5

.
4

5

'

POINT OF

BEGINNING

2

7

2

8

4

2

1

 

s

q

.

f

f

.

2

7

3

8

2

8

3

 

s

q

.

f

f

.

2

7

4

8

8

4

2

 

s

q

.

f

f

.

2

7

5

1

2

9

5

9

 
s

q

.
f
f
.

276

9261 sq.ff.

2

7

7

7

7

3

0

 

s

q

.

f

f

.

2

7

8

7

1

9

1

 

s

q

.

f

f

.

2

7

9

7

3

3

9

 

s

q

.

f

f

.

2

8

0

7

3

1

9

 

s

q

.

f

f

.

2

8

1

7

6

5

1

 

s

q

.

f

f

.

282

8460 sq.ff.

283

9643 sq.ff.

284

8579 sq.ff.

285

9483 sq.ff.

2

8

6

1

1

2

3

2

 

s

q

.

f

f

.

TRACT 5A

123427 sq.ff.

2

8

7

1

2

5

3

1

 

s

q

.

f

f

.

2

9

0

1

1

1

3

5

 
s

q

.
f
f
.

T

R

A

C

T

 

5

C

1

6

8

4

0

 

s

q

.

f

f

.

TRACT 5A

U

N

P

L

A

T

T

E

D

N
8
6
°3

0
'0

7
"W

  2
9
0
1
.6

4
'

N03°29'53"E

25.00'

5
7
4
.4

8
'

627.17'

1
6
1
6
.3

7
'

8
3
.6

2
'

S
O

U
T

H
 LIN

E
, S

W
 1/4, S

E
C

. 18-46-32

2
5
'

R
/
W

1/2" R
B

 W
/

LS
-2006016633 C

A
P

4.75'  S
O

U
T

H

3/8" R
B

3.45' E
A

S
T

0.2'  N
O

R
TH

2
5
'

S
0
3
°
3
0
'
2
1
"
W

 
 
1
1
8
.
3
6
'

N
8
6
°0

3
'3

5
"E

  
7
0
.9

1
'

R

=

1

2

5

.

0

0

'

L

=

7

9

.

2

9

'

Δ

=

3

6

°

2

0

'

4

5

"

N

1

9

°

5

7

'
2

4

"

W

 

 

8

3

.

7

7

'

R

=

1

2

5

.

0

0

'

L

=

5

2

.

7

1

'

Δ

=

2

4

°

0

9

'

4

1

"

R

=

3

5

0

.

0

0

'

L

=

7

6

.

6

3

'

Δ

=

1

2

°

3

2

'

4

1

"

N

6

4

°

2

2

'
0

2

"

E

 

 

1

7

9

.

7

9

'

S

H

A

N

E

 
L

N

M

A

C

I

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

S

H

A

N

E

 

C

T

E
. C

A
M

B
R

ID
G

E
 R

O
A

D

2

5

'
 

B

L

2

5

'

 

B

L

2

5

'

 

B

L

2
5
'
 
B

L

2

5

'
 
B

L

2

5

'

 

B

L

1

0

'
 
U

/
E

1

0

'

 

U

/

E

1

0

'
 

U

/

E

7

.
5

'
 
U

/
E

1

0

'

 

U

/

E

1
0
' U

/E

1

0

'
 
U

/
E

1
0
'
 
U

/
E

2

0

'
 

U

/

E

1

0

'
 
U

/
E

S

/

E

1

0

'

 

U

/

E

S

/

E

5' D/E

7

.

5

'

 

U

/

E

1

0

'

 

U

/

E

7

.

5

'

 

U

/

E

7

.

5

'
 

U

/

E

5' S/E

10' S/E

15' U/E

7
.5

' U
/E

7

.

5

'

 

U

/

E

1
0
'
 
U

/
E

1

0

'

 

U

/

E

1
0
' 
U

/
E

CL 15' S/E

CL 15' S/E

I

T

B

=

S

4

2

°

5

6

'

5

8

"

E

R

=

1

2

5

.

0

0

'

L

=

5

0

.

1

6

'

2.55'

1
1
6

.
9

6
'

3

3

9
.
7

0

'

5

7

.

2

8

'

6

2

.

7

5

'

7

2

.

2

6

'

6

2

.

5

0

'

S

6

4

°

5

8

'
1

8

"

W

1

2

9

.

0

0

'

S

6

7

°

0

6

'
5

1

"

E

5

1

.

8

5

'

S

6

4

°

5

8

'
1

8

"

W

1

3

9

.

1

8

'

6

1

.

9

7

'

9

4

.

6

3

'

6

8

.

7

7

'

8

4

.

4

4

'

6

0

.
1

7

'

S

1

2

°

3

3

'
0

2

"
E

1

1

0

.
0

0

'

1

3

6

.

7

7

'

R

=

9

.

0

0

'

L

=

2

4

.

4

4

'

1
7

.
0

2

'

3
2
.7

2
'

21.41'

1

8

4

.
6

9

'

1

0

9

.

2

4

'

S

2

4

°

4

0

'
3

6

"

W

1

3

1

.

0

4

'

32.4

9

'

1

2

2

.

6

7

'

S

5

8

°

1

7

'

5

7

"

W

1

0

1

.

5

4

'

38.38'

S

5

8

°

1

7

'

5

7

"

W

1

2

0

.

1

2

'

12.56'

R=25.00'

L=25.39'

3
0

.
9

1

'

S

5

8

°

1

7

'

5

7

"

W

1

1

9

.

1

1

'

6

1

.

5

9

'

1.38'

7

0

.

7

5

'

S

5

8

°

1

7

'

5

7

"

W

1

1

4

.

5

3

'

12.79'

R=25.00'

L=21.03'

2

7

.

8

7

'

1.66'

S
8
3
°
3
5
'5

1
"
W

1
2
8
.0

0
'

4

1

.

0

9

'

6
8
.9

4
'

N

5

3

°

5

7

'

4

9

"

W

 

 

1

0

6

.

2

8

'

3

7

.

0

3

'

3

7

.

8

6

'

105.33'

21.26'

N

1

0

°
3

4

'
3

7

"
W

1

0

4

.
8

3

'

3

9

.
8

1
'

1

1

7

.

0

9

'

6

0

.

0

0

'

N

3

5

°

0

2

'

2

1

"

E

1

0

9

.

4

1

'

3

8

.

9

5

'

6

2

.

4

0

'

15.17'

N

7

9

°
4

0

'
1

2

"
E

1

2

5

.
0

1

'

3
3

.
6

5

'

8
1
.
7

8
'

21.41'

3
2
.7

2
'

5

5

.

0

4

'

22.78'

3.10'

2

7

.

8

7

'

R=25.00'

L=21.03'

7
2
.0

0
'

7

7

.

0

5

'

2

2
.

6

4

'

8

0

.

8

1

'

1

3

9

.

8

6

'

5

8

.

2

0

'

5

0

.
0

0

'

7

1

.
1

6

'

1

3

9

.

9

7

'

2

2

.

7

5
'

15.96'

5

0

.

0

0

'

1

2

2

.

0

3

'

1
0
3
.
1
9
'

6

5

.

0

9

'

N

7

5

°

5

3

'
2

7

"

E

1

4

8

.
5

6

'

4
3
.5

0
'

5

2

.

2

7

'

N

7

2

°

0

1

'
2

0

"

E

1

5

3

.

5

7

'

7

1

.

1

0

'

7
8
.0

4
'

1

2

5

.
4

5

'

3
6
.6

2
'

1

3

3

.

9

3

'

6
0
2
.1

7
'

N

4

4

°

0

9

'

3

3

"

W

 

 

1

3

8

.

3

5

'

N
8
6
°3

0
'0

7
"W

  1
7
4
.2

7
'

1
4
0
.0

0
'

S

3

2

°

4

6

'

5

1

"

E

 

 

1

9

6

.

6

8

'

S

3

1

°

4

1

'

1

4

"

E

 

 

3

8

8

.

7

7

'

S

2

4

°

1

9

'
1

5

"

W

 

 

1

9

3

.

4

2

'

N

2

1

°

2

0

'
3

1

"

W

 

 

1

8

8

.

4

6

'

R

=

5

0

.

0

0

'

R

=

5

0

.

0

0

'

N

6

5

°

3

1

'
1

6

"

E

 

 

1

5

3

.

2

1

'

15' U/E

S

7

2

°

3

1

'
3

1

"

W

6

9

.
0

0

'

N
8
5
°5

7
'4

2
"W

  1
5
2
.2

7
'

2

5

.
5

3

'

2
2
.
2
9
'

2

0

.

1

4

'

S/E

S24°57'53"E

201.29'

S

/

E

8.37'

15' S/E

N
86°30'07"W

  310.43'

2

1

.

4

1

'

(
P

l
a
t
t
e
d
,
 
N

0
3
°
2
9
'
5
6
"
E

)

(P
la

tte
d
, N

8
6
°1

3
'3

0
"W

)

R=14'

TYP.

# 55

# 56

# 57

# 61

# 62

# 63

# 64

# 65

# 66

# 67

25'

2

5

'
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2

5

'

2

5

'
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2

5

'

2
5
'
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
'

2

5

'
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2

5

'

R

=

9

0

0

.

0

0

'

L

=

5

1

3

.

9

4

'

Δ

=

3

2

°

4

3

'
0

6

"

288

8651 sq.ff.

289

12227 sq.ff.

T
R

A
C

T
 
5
D

 
-
 
3
3
9
7
 
s
q
.
f
f
.
 
:
 
S

e
e
 
D

e
t
a
i
l

T
R

A
C

T
 
5
B

1
0
6
4
6
 
s
q
.
f
f
.

5

9
.
3

4
'

S

1

1

°
1

2

'
5

4

"
W

2

7

.
4

9

'

3
3

.
6

4

'

S
0
3
°
3
0
'
2
1
"
W

 
 
1
5
4
.
6
4
'

2

6
.
9

0
'

6

2

.
2

6

'

R
=

2
5

0
.
0

0
'

R
=

2
5
0
.
0
0
'

6

2

.

5

0

'

6

1

.

9

2

'

N

4

4

°

0

7

'

0

5

"

W

7

1

.

6

3

'

N

1

5

°

5

1

'
0

9

"

E

1

2

.
1

0

'

N20°17'50"W

127.62'

1

8

.

5

0

'

10' D
/E

1
0
'

S

6

3

°

5

2

'
0

4

"

E

3

0

.

4

6

'

1

1

4

.

5

8

'

U

/

E

L
N

A

L
N

A

1

0

'
 
U

/
E

2

4

' 
U

/
E

6
1
.
0

0
'

N

7

5

°

1

8

'
4

0

"
E

3

3

.
9

5

'

S
0
7
°
1
1
'
1
1
"
E

 
 
7
6
.
6
5
'

1

0

7

.

7

8

'

C

L

 

1

5

'

 

D

/

E

C

L
 
1
5
'
 
D

/
E

285.00'

2

5

'
 

U

/

E

POINT OF

COMMENCING

SE CORNER

SW 1/4

SECTION 18-46-32

3/8" REBAR

SW CORNER

SW 1/4

SECTION 18-46-32

COPPER CAP

COORDINATE LIST

Point #

55

56

57

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

Northing

959173.46

959024.13

959020.22

958385.65

958429.02

958703.33

958714.78

958864.15

958858.00

959028.89

Easting

2786807.52

2786540.47

2786452.87

2787293.83

2786584.37

2786601.18

2786428.07

2786383.14

2786360.04

2786320.31

S
0
3
°
3
0
'
2
1
"
W

 
 
1
1
8
.
3
6
'

N
8
6
°0

3
'3

5
"E

  
7
0
.9

1
'

25'

1
0
6
.
3
6
'

R=8.00'

L=12.57'

R=8.00'

L=12.56'

N86°30'45"W

2.00'

N
0
3
°
3
0
'
2
1
"
E

 
 
1
4
2
.
6
3
'

R

=

2

2

3

.
0

0

'

L
=

5

1
.
5

0

'

R

=

4

.

0

0

'

L

=

1

1

.

2

6

'

R
=

8
9

8
.
0

0
'

L
=

8
6

.
9

2
'

18'

27'

72'

14920 West 107th Street ● Lenexa, Kansas 66215

Ph: (913) 492-5158 ● Fax: (913) 492-8400 ● WWW.SCHLAGELASSOCIATES.COM

Missouri State Certificates of Authority

 #E2002003800-F  #LAC2001005237  #LS2002008859-F

SECTION 18-46-32

LOCATION MAP

SCALE 1" = 2000'

VILLAS

HIGHWAY 58 (171ST ST)

NW1/4

NE1/4

SE1/4

SW1/4

E CAMBRIDGE RD

D
E

A
N

 
A

V
E

S
 
M

U
L
L
E

N
 
R

D

I

 

-

 

7

1

R

R

1ST

PLAT

PROJECT

LOCATION

18

2ND

3RD

4TH

PLAT

DESCRIPTION:

A tract of land lying in the Southwest One-Quarter of Section 18, Township 46 North, Range 32 West, in the City of Belton, Cass

County, Missouri being more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the Southeast corner of the said Southwest One-Quarter; thence along the South line of the said Southwest One-Quarter,

North 86 degrees 30 minutes 07 seconds West, a distance of 574.48 feet; thence North 03 degrees 29 minutes 53 seconds East, a distance

of 25.00 feet to the THE POINT OF BEGINNING; thence along a line 25.00' North of and parallel with the Said South line, North 86 degrees

30 minutes 07 seconds West, a distance of 710.79 feet, to the Southeast corner of LOT 3, REPLAT OF WHORTON FARMS, a subdivision

of land in the said City of Belton, recorded in Book 24 at Page 31; thence along the East line of said LOT 3, North 03 degrees 30 minutes 29

seconds East(Platted, North 03 degrees 29 minutes 56 seconds East), a distance of 274.82 feet to the Northeast corner of said LOT 3;

thence along the North line of said Lot 3, North 86 degrees 12 minutes 57 seconds West(Platted,North 86 degrees 13 minutes 30 seconds

West), a distance of 173.49 feet; thence North 16 degrees 44 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 155.98 feet to a point of curvature;

thence along a curve to the right, having, an initial tangent bearing of South 76 degrees 54 minutes 43 seconds West, a radius of 375.00

feet, a central angle of 03 degrees 39 minutes 08 seconds and an arc length of 23.90 feet; thence North 13 degrees 05 minutes 17 seconds

West, a distance of 175.45 feet to a point on the South line of TRADITIONS -  4TH PLAT, a subdivision of land in the said City of Belton,

recorded in Book 24 at Page 73; thence along the South line of said TRADITIONS -  4TH PLAT for the following three courses, South 86

degrees 15 minutes 32 seconds East, a distance of 132.84 feet; thence North 87 degrees 26 minutes 33 seconds East, a distance of 87.69

feet; thence North 60 degrees 47 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 305.96 feet to a point on the Northeast edge of a hundred feet

Missouri Public Service Company Electric Line Easement as recorded in Book 506 at Page 84; thence along the Northeast edge of said

Electric Line Easement, South 31 degrees 41 minutes 14 seconds East, a distance of 925.82 feet to the Point of Beginning, and containing

9.2480 acres, more or less.

APPROVALS:

This plat of "TRADITIONS - 5TH PLAT" has been submitted to and approved by the Planning Commission of the City of

Belton, Cass County, Missouri,  this _________ day of _____________________, 2021.

__________ ___________________ ATTEST_____________________________

Tom MacPherson, Chairman     _____________________, Secretary

These easements and Right-of-Ways accepted by the city council of Belton, Cass County, Missouri,  this _________ day

of _____________________, 2021.

__________ ___________________ ATTEST_____________________________

Jeff Davis,  Mayor Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk

Entered on transfer record this _________ day of _____________________.

_____________________________________________

Mike Medsker,  County Recorder

I HEREBY CERTIFY; that the within plat of  "TRADITIONS - 5TH PLAT", subdivision

is based on an actual survey meets or exceeds the current Minimum Standards for

Property Boundary Surveys as adopted by the Missouri Board of Architects,

Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors of the State of Missouri. I further certify

that bearings shown on this plat are based upon the record description of the parent

tract and that the section and sectional subdivision corner monuments and survey

boundary corner monuments were either found or set as indicated on this plat; that

the lot corners and street centerlines have been marked with permanent

monumentation as indicated on this plat; that I have complied with all State and

Belton statutes, ordinances and regulations governing the practice of surveying and

the platting of subdivisions to the best of my professional knowledge and belief.

______day of _______________, 202___.

ST
A

TE  O F  M I SSOU
R

I

P R OFESSI ON A L  L AN D SURVE Y
OR

DAVID A.
RINNE

NUMBER
PLS-2014000198

David Allen Rinne, P.L.S.

MO# PLS-2014000198

0 50' 100'

SCALE: 1" = 50'

N

BASIS OF BEARINGS:

Grid North, Missouri State Plan coordinate System

 NAD 1983, West Zone

S line, SW 1/4, Sec. 18-46-32: N86°30'07"W

DEVELOPER:

SALLEE HOMES, INC.

R. TYLER SALLEE, VICE PRESIDENT

P.O. Box 6437, Lee's Summit, MO 64064

ph: 616-525-2891

RESTRICTIONS:

The use of all Lots and Tracts of land in this subdivision shall hereafter be subject to any and all covenants and

restrictions recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds of Cass County, Missouri and shall hereby become a part of

the dedication of this plat as though fully set forth hereon.

Tracts 5A thru 5C are common open area for multifamily units to be owned and maintained by the homeowners's

association.

Tract 5D is landscaping area  to be owned and maintained by the homeowners's association.

NOTES:

1. Radii of R/W at street intersections is 14' unless otherwise

dimensioned.

2. Easement information was furnished by OLD REPUBLIC

National Title Insurance Company, issued through the office of:

Coffelt Land Title, Inc., 262 NE Tudor Rd., Lee's Summit, MO, in

their report number: 15006496, Dated December 7, 2015.

3. FLOOD NOTE: This Property lies within Flood Zone X, defined

as areas determined to be outside the 0.2% annual chance

floodplain as shown on the FIRM Map 29037C0017F, revised

January 2, 2013.

4. Areas designated as drainage easements shall be maintained by

the property owner.

DEDICATIONS:

The undersigned proprietor of the above described tract of land has caused the same to be subdivided in the manner as

shown on the accompanying plat, which subdivision shall hereafter be known as "TRADITIONS - 5TH PLAT".  It shall be

sufficient description of each lot  platted hereon to be designated by the number which appears on said lot followed by the

words  "TRADITIONS - 5TH PLAT".

Streets shown hereon and not heretofore  dedicated for public use as street right-of-way are hereby dedicated.

An easement is hereby granted to Belton, Missouri, for the purpose of locating, constructing, operating and maintaining

facilities for water, gas, electricity, sewage, telephone, cable tv and surface drainage including but not limited to,

underground pipes and conduits, pad mounted transformers, service pedestals, any or all of them upon, over, under and

along the strips of land designated utility easements (U/E).  Where other easements are designated for a particular

purpose, the use thereof shall be limited to that purpose only.  All the above easements shall be kept free from any and all

obstructions which would interfere with the construction or reconstruction and proper, safe and continuous maintenance of

the aforesaid uses and specifically there shall not be built thereon or thereover any structure (except driveways, paved

areas, grass, shrubs and fences; with the exception of drainage easements (D/E) where no fences shall be erected) nor

shall there be any obstruction to interfere with the agents and employees of Belton, Missouri and its franchised utilities

from going upon said easement and as much of the adjoining lands as may be reasonably necessary in exercising the

rights granted to the easements. No excavation or fill shall be made or operation of any kind or nature shall be performed

which would reduce or increase the earth coverage over utilities above stated or the appurtenances thereto without the

written approval of the Director of Public Works, as to all easements dedicated to the City.

Facilities placed within the limits of D/E are to  be maintained by the homeowners's association.

LEGEND:

SurveyPropertyCornerSymbols

FOUND 1/2" REBAR W/LS-8859-F CAP

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

SurveyPropertyCornerSymbols

FOUND MONUMENT BOX

EXISTING LOT AND PROPERTY LINES

EXISTING PLAT  AND R/W LINES

BL - BUILDING LINE

R/W - RIGHT-OF-WAY

U/E - UTILITY EASEMENT

MISSOURI

SurveyPropertyCornerSymbols

SET 1/2" REBAR W/LS-8859-F CAP

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

SurveyPropertyCornerSymbols

SET 2" ALUMINUM CAP W/

MO LS20022008859 IN

4" MIN. DIAMETER CONCRETE

D/E - DRAINAGE EASEMENT

MISSOURI STATE PLANE COORDINATES 

OF 1983 MISSOURI  WEST ZONE, 2002

REFERENCE MONUMENT: CA-25

GRID FACTOR  0.9998958

COORDINATES LISTED IN U.S. FEET

         NORTHING      EASTING

 CA-25   958438.99      2784986.68

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the undersigned proprietor has caused this instrument to be executed this  _____ day of

_____________________________, 20____

Sallee Homes, Inc

          By: ______________________________________________

                 R. Tyler Sallee, Vice President

STATE OF  )

             )ss.

COUNTY OF )

Be It remembered, that on this _____ day of _____________________________, 20____. before me, the

undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State came R. Tyler Sallee,  Vice President of Sallee Homes,

Inc, known to me to be the same person who executed the foregoing instrument of writing on behalf of said

Corporation, and such person duly acknowledged the execution of same to be the act and deed of said Corporation.

_________________________________________ _______________________________

                                    Notary Public                                  My Appointment Expires

S/E - SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
SurveyPropertyCornerSymbols

FOUND 2" ALUMINUM CAP W/ MO

LS20022008859 IN CONCRETE

LNA - LIMITS OF NO ACCESS

2'

Tract 5D - DETAIL:

SCALE 1" = 50'

098

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJ. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-8-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
JWT

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-022

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLAT OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRADITIONS - 5TH PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SEC. 18-46N-32W  IN THE CITY OF BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI  

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLAT OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRADITIONS - 5TH PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 272 THRU 290 AND TRACTS 5A, 5B & 5C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N



099


	agenda 071321.pdf
	June 22, 2021 CC Minutes-FINAL.pdf
	agenda section dividers.pdf
	June 22, 2021 City Council Minutes.pdf

	Auction Items-FINAL.pdf
	agenda section dividers.pdf
	items listing.pdf

	R2021-57-FINAL.pdf
	agenda section dividers.pdf
	1. Resolution-PSA with Downtown Belton Main Street - fall festival.pdf
	2. PSA Downtown Belton Main Street Fall Festival 2021.pdf
	3. fall festival map - street closures-pic.pdf

	R2021-58-FINAL.pdf
	agenda section dividers.pdf
	1. PW Facility-Insulation 2 Contract Award-Washington Resolution RS 07.13.2021.pdf
	2. PW Facility - Insulation 2 Contract Award Council Info Form RS 07.13.2021.pdf
	3. PW Facility-Insulation 2 Contract Award-Washington RS 07.13.2021.pdf

	R2021-59-FINAL.pdf
	agenda section dividers.pdf
	Planning Comm appt Pryan.pdf
	Kelly Monaghan-Bass    August 1, 2022

	JAMES PRYAN app.pdf

	R2021-60-FINAL.pdf
	agenda section dividers.pdf
	EEZ reappt Sally Smith.pdf

	R2021-61-FINAL.pdf
	agenda section dividers.pdf
	Resolution 2021 Mayor’s Task Force on Water Infrastructure and Services.pdf

	Bill No. 2021-36-FINAL.pdf
	agenda section dividers.pdf
	1. conflict of interest - ord.pdf
	2. exhibit A-Chapter 2, article VI.pdf
	ARTICLE VI. ETHICS
	DIVISION 1. GENERALLY
	Secs. 2-1092—2-1120. Reserved.

	DIVISION 2. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
	Sec. 2-1121. Declaration of policy.
	Sec. 2-1122. Conflicts of interest.
	Sec. 2-1123. Disclosure reports.
	Sec. 2-1124. Filing of reports.
	Sec. 2-1125. When filed.




	Bill No. 2021-37-FINAL.pdf
	agenda section dividers.pdf
	Amending Ch 6-96(d) License officer.pdf

	Bill No. 2021-38-FINAL.pdf
	agenda section dividers.pdf
	1. SVCC 4th Plat - Final Plat Ord.pdf
	BILL NO. 2021-38 ORDINANCE NO.
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

	2. Southview Center 4th Plat Final Plat CC.pdf
	3. SVCC_4th_Plat_Final_Plat_21-06-15.pdf
	4. Location Map.pdf

	Bill No. 2021-39-FINAL.pdf
	agenda section dividers.pdf
	1. SVCC 5th Plat - Final Plat Ord.pdf
	BILL NO. 2021-39        ORDINANCE NO.
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

	2. Southview Center 5th Plat Final Plat CC.pdf
	3. SVCC5_Final_Plat_21-06-14.pdf
	V_FPT2_810200D-Sheet 1 - 5th Plat
	V_FPT2_810200D-Sheet 2 - 5th Plat

	4. Location Map.pdf

	Bill No, 2021-40-FINAL.pdf
	agenda section dividers.pdf
	1. Sunset Hills 3rd Plat - Final Plat Ord.pdf
	BILL NO. 2021-40                 ORDINANCE NO.
	AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR SUNSET HILLS 3rd  PLAT; BEING A REPLAT OF CERTAIN LOTS IN SUNSET HILLS 2nd PLAT AND SUNSET HILLS ADDITION, AS SPECIFIED IN THE PLAT LEGAL DESCRIPTION, THE REPLAT BEING A TRACT OF LAND IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF...
	WHEREAS, the Planning Commission is authorized pursuant to Section 36-35 of the Unified Development Code to review and approve, approve conditionally, or disapprove final plats within a reasonable time after submission; and
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

	2. Sunset Hills 3rd Plat Final Plat CC.pdf
	3. Sunset_Hills_3rd_Plat Final plat.pdf
	4. Location Map.pdf

	Bill No. 2021-41-FINAL.pdf
	agenda section dividers.pdf
	1. Traditions 5th Plat - Final Plat Ord.pdf
	BILL NO. 2021-41        ORDINANCE NO.
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

	2. Traditions 5th Plat Final Plat CC sheet.pdf
	3. Final Plat-24x36.pdf
	4. Location Map.pdf


	Text1: Planning Commission


